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and fonr ofticers were to be
delivered up as hostages for the
performance of the stipulations.”

Macnanghten’s own explanation
of this disgraceful transaction, is
this: ;

*The whole country as far as
we could learn had risen in re-
bellion 5 our eommunications on
all sides were cut off ; .we had
been fighting forty days against
superior numbers under most dis-
advantageous circumstances with
o deplorable loss of life, and in a

day or two must have perished of |

hiunger. I had been repoatedly
apprized by the military autho-
rities that nothing could be done
with our troops. The terms I
secured were the best obtainable,
and the destruction of 15,000 be-
ings would Little have benefited
our country, while the Govern-
ment would have been almost
compelled to avenge our fate at
whatever cost.” The historid# of
the Afghan war describes the po-
sition of the envoy thus, “*Euvi-
roned and hemmed in by difficul-
ties and. dangers, overwhelmed
with responsibility which there
was none to share—the lives of
15,600 men resting on his decision
—the hionor of his conntry at stake
—with a perfidious enemy before
him, a decrepit General at his
side, and a paralyzed army at his
back, he was driven to negotiate
by the imbecility of his compa-
nions.” There isno donbt that
the entire blame rests with the
two military commanders, who
were quite unfitted for their posts,
General Elphinstone, by bodily
infirmity and constitutional im-
becility, and Brigadier Shelton, by
a perverse temper and obstinacy.

The treaty made with the Af-

ghans was violated by them. The |
aid offered was refused, though | a

|

“ It was at this critical juneture,
while ' Bir William Maennughten
was tossed upon a sea of difficul-
ties and bewildered by the ap:
palling crisis, which wnsappmaelf«
ing, that he was drawn into the
net which Akbar Khan spread
for bis destruction.  On the even-
ing of the 22nd December 1841,
the wily Afghan sent two Agents

- with Major Skinner, who was his

prisoner, to the envoy, with a
meuszd, to be considered at a
couference the next day, that
Akbar Khan and the Cihilzyes
should unite with the British
troops  ontside the cantonment,
and make & sudden attack on
Mahomed Shak's fort and seize
the person of Ameencolln, the
most hostile and ferocious of the

ingurgent chiefs, whose head wasto
be presented to the envoy fora
sum of money, but the offer was
indignantly rejected by him, It
was further proposed’ that the
Britigh force should remain till
the spring : and then retive of
its own accord ; that the Shah
should retain the title of king

and that Akbar Khan, should
be Vizier receiving from the

British Government an annuity
of four lacs of Rs. a year, and an
immediate payment of thirty lacs.
In an evil hour for his repatation
and his safety, the envoy accept-

ed this treacherous proposalin a
Persian paper drawn up with hig
own hand.  When this wild over-
ture was communicated to (Gene-

ral Elphinstone and Captain Mac-

kenzic the next morning, they
both pronounced it to be 4 plot,

nd endeavoured to dissnade Sir

the envoy bad fulfilled his part of ¢
the contract to the letter—and he
was drawn into a mesh which res
sulted in his' death, thus related” .
in Marshman's History of Indin, ©
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Akbar Khan. He ‘replied in a
hurried maoner, ““ Let me alone
for that, dangerous though it be ;

wiLat sueceeds, it1s worth all rigks ;
', “the.rebels .havé not fulfilléd one
article’ of sthe treaty, and I have

no confidence in them, and if by

it we caf) only safe<our honet,.
¢ willbe well. At any
rapher sutfer a hindred: deaths

any rate, 1T would

than live the last six weeks over
again,” At noon he directed the

JGeneral to-have two regiments,

and some guns ready for the at-
tack of the fort, and then proceed:
ed with Captains Trevor, Mac-
kenzie and Lawrence, with the
slender protection of only six-
teen of his body guard to the
fatal 1meeting, At the distance
of six hundred yards from the
cantonment, Akbar Khan had
caused some horse cloths to be
spread on the slope of a hill, where
the snow lay less deep. The sus-
picions of the officers, as they dis-
mounted, were rouged by the ap-
pearance of Ameenoolla’s brother
at the conference, and the large
number of armed followers who
were present.  Akbar Khan ad-
dressed a haughty salutation to
Sir William, and immediately
after, on a given signal, the offi-
cers were suddenly seized from
behind, and placed separately on
the saddle of an Afghan horse-
man, who galloped off to the
oity. ~Captain Trevor fell off the

]lwus hacked to pieces.
Akbar Khan himself endeavour-
ed to seize Sir William, who

atruggled vigorously, exela.iming

erfian, ‘ For God’s sake.
b erated by this resistance,
the fierce youth drew forth the

pistol which Sir William had pre-

. sentad to him the day before and
shot dn dead, ,when the ghazees

William from gb'ing out’to'meet,

trushed up, and mutilated his body
with, thewr knives.
peated’ declaration be wm’-t{]:r- of
any credit, Akbar Khan had no
intention of taking away the life
of the envoy, but was simply anx-
ious to obtain possession of his
E‘erson as a hostage for the Dost.
hus perished Sir William Mace-
naughten, the victim of an un:
sound and unjust policy, but as
noble and brave u gantieman as
ever fell in the service of his
country.” - O

MACRAE, James,: Mr. James
Macrae was born in Ayrshire
about the latter part of the reign
of merry King Charles, His par-
ents were of the verylowest class,
and he himself, whilst a boy, is
said to have been employed in
looking after cattle, His father,
however, died whilst James Mac-
rae was still very young; and
his Mnother then removed with

they lived in a little thatched cot-
tage in the suburbg. and where
the poor widow gained her living
as n washerwoman. Here young
Macrae added something to his
mother’s earnings by running
messages ; but at the same time
seems to have picked up some
little education by means only
known to  Scotchmen. He ap-
pears, however,.to have grown
tired of this monotonous  life
whilst still a boy. Ayr was a
geaport, and it is easy to nnder-
stand how a young man, endowed
with the energy which Macrue
subsequently proved himself to

ossess. should have imbibed a

een desive to embark in the ad-
venturous trading of the time, and
finally have turned his back upon
the poverty of home and run off

1o =on,

If his own re-

her son to the town of Ayr ; where
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facrae veturned to  hLis native
land 3 and it isgenerally believed
that throughout the whole of
that period he held no communi-
ation whatever with his relations
or his home.  Meantime his sister
married a carpenter named Mac-
Guire, who' wus also in great re-
quest as a violin-player at kirns
and  weddings. and was conse-
&uqntl;v known as ** Fiddler Mac-
uire.” The poverty: of these
eople may be gathered from the
act that the children of MacGuire
were on one oceasion seen cryim
for bread, whilst their mother ha
left the house to try and borrow
aloaf. But we shall have more
garticulam of thisfamily to relate
hereafter.  For the present we
must confine ourselves to the
career of Mr. Macrae.
.. The earl{y eveuts in the seafar-
ing life of the young runaway
must we fear for ever remaim un-
known, We can learn nothing of
him #ill about 1720, when he
mugt already have been thirt
fmara in India, and is simply al-
uded toas Captain Macrae, Most
probably he had risen to the com-
mand of & vessel in the country
trade, and had undertaken voy-
ages to Sumatra, Pegn, and China.
1t appears, however, that he had
been snccessful in gaining the
confidence of his Honorable Mas-
ters, for he was subsequently sent
oOn a special mission to the Eng-
lish settlement on the West Coast
of Sumatra, to reform the many

abuses which prevailed at that !
settlement. Here he acquitted |
1 vants, should have free liberty of

himself in sueh a manner as to
ensure his appointment to a high
post. He effected savings to the
extent of nearly 0,000 pagod

or about £25,000 per annum ; an¢
at the same time carvied oub such

iy’ years passed away before 1
| increase in the suI|)3ply of pepper.

MAC

reforms as promised a very large

Aceordingly the Directors order-
ed that on leaving the West Coast

| he should be appointed Deputy

Governor of Fort St. David, and -
thus stand next in succession to
the Glovernmentof Fort St. George.
The retirement of Mr. Elwick led
to Mr. Macrae’s advancement tp
the latter post sooner thau could
have been expected. © He returned
from the West Coast towards the
end of 1724, and without proceed-
ing to Fort St. David, at once
took his seat as second Member
of Conneil at Fort St. (leorge.
At last on the 18th of Januaty
1726, the son of the poor washer-
woman of Ayr took his place as
Governor of the Madras Presiden-
cy. The proceedings on that oc-
cagion are thus recorded in the
consultations.

“ Monday, 18th January 1725,
The President (James Macrae,
Iisq.,) opened this consultation hy
telling the Board that, as this was
the first time of their meeting
since his taking the chair, he
thought it would not be impro-
l}er to acquaint them of his reso-
utions ; of which the prineipal

| was, that he would prosecute the

Company’s interest to the utmost,
and endeavour to retrieve the
abuses that had crept into the
management of their affairs, He
added that he was determined not
to interropt in any manner the
commerce of the place, but that
all the inhabitants both Whites
and Blacks, the Free Merchants
as well as the Company’s Ser-

trade, and that he should expect
the same freedom from interrnp-
tions in what he should under-
take ; that he would endeavour
to be as agreeable to the gentle-
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men as any of  hig prodecessors
but that he was determined b

. maintain ‘the privileges and im-

munities belonging to the Presi-
dent ; and he concluded by say-

-ing, that he expected a ready as-.

sistance from them in the pursuit
“of "the above resolutions, which
v was a;_:cordinglly' romised.”

- On the 14th May 1730, George
Morton Pitt; was made Governor
of Madrag, and Macrae refired.
A% On the 218k January 1731,

~Glovernor Macrae set sail for Eng-
land, after an absence of some
. forty years.  Without a wife, and
. “without of course any legitimate
. child, be appears to have returned
to his native land, laden with a
fortuhe popularly estimated  at
~ abovea hundred thousand pounds,
Accordingto a tradition published
& few years back in the dyr-
shave  Observer, the wvessel  in
which ' Mr, Macrae returned to
England, was captured on its way
by a privateer ; and the shrewd
. ex<Governor, knowing the vessel
. to have on board a vu.i’uable Cargo
- ‘of diamonds, had the address to
get the ship ransomed for a com-
paratively small sum.” We' are
also<told by the same authority
that the East India Directors
were so pleased with the Gover-
nor’s .conduct in . India, that on
his return they enquired how they
could-reward him. He is said to
have replied that if he had done
anything meritorious, he would
leave the reward to them.. We
have not, however, succeeded in
discovering what was the value of
the veward conferred on the ex-
Governor; or il indeed any pecu-
niary reward was conferred at
all, The story in itself <is quite
in keeping wath the cHaracter of
Me, Macrae, In the matter of
his allowanceo for table expenses

'ah;ea.'d}r"----néuﬁc'ei, it ‘is- recorded.

that Governor Pitt had frequently
desired his predecessor to givein
somyp dceonnt of hig éxpenses, but
that Mr. Macrae  declined’ doing
anything of the sort; und:left the
‘Board td allow him whatever they
thought' proper, ; W

- On Mr, Macrae’s arrival in Eng-
land, hig fivst object appesrs to
have been to enquire about the
fortunes. of his family. It seems
that his mother had been dead
gome! years, and that his sister,
who was still living at Ayr, had
married a man named MacChaire,
who gained a livelihood parely as
a carpenter and partly as'a fiddler
at kirns and  weddings. Mn
Macrae accordingly wrote to his
sister at Ayr, enclosing a large
sum of money, and engaging to
provide handsomely for herself
and family. The surprise of Mr.
and Mra. MacCGuire was of eonrsa
unbounded ; and they are said to -
Jave. given way to their delight
by indulging in a luxury whieh .
will serve to illustrate both their
ideag of happiness, and the state
of pwerglg 1 whicf: they had been
living., :They procured o loaf of
sugar and a bottle of brandy ; and
scooping out a hole in the sugar
loaf, they ponred in the hranﬁy
and =~ supped- up the sweetened
spirit with ‘spoons, until the ex-
‘cess of felicity compelled  them
to close their eyes in pedceful
glumber, -

The grand. object which Mr,
Macrae appears to have had in
view during the remaining years
of his life, was the elevation of his
gister's fanily, the four daungh-
tors of Mr.and Mrs. MacGuire.*
The eldest married Mr Charles

* The information here given has been
derived from descendants or connesions
of the family who are still living,

fo
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Dalrdmple, who was Sheriff Clerk
T Ay, and received the estate of
 Orangefield.  The traditionis gtill
- preserved of alarge box of tea, a
gl‘;aat rarity at that time, having
eon presented to Mrs. Dalrym-
‘ple by Governor Macrae ; and
this box proved so large that the
doors at Orangefield® would not
achoit it, and it became necessary
to haul it up on the outside for
admission at a large window,
This. box” strongly bound with
brass is still in existence, and is
‘used as a corn chest by Dr. White-
. house of Ayr. . The second daugh-
iter married Mr. James Erskine,
¢ who received  the espate of Alva ;
Jnand was afterwards  elevated to
“the Beiwth under the title of Lord
Alva. The third married William,
the thirteenth Earl of (Hencairn,
In this match Glovernor Mucrae
took the liveliest interest, but it
did not come off till the year
1744 ; apd then the old Nabob
wag 80 seriously il that the dog-
or conddinot assure him of living
uniil | the solemnuization of the
a0 shis occasion Gov-
Cempy, Mesrae. pavh his niece as
“uneher” e barony of Ochiltree,
Cwhiashe hiad eost |l £25,000, as
woll ag dizmonde go the value of
F14000. Bat  the marriage did
mat provie s happ

o Barlhad o venl affection for his

1 wite, however much he may have

respected ey wealth. The Earl,
. However, was not inelined to sub-
[ it to any fanndin allusions to
CUlyis owifels: fumdly,! ﬁn‘ when Lord
1 Cassilia rdpreached: him at a ball
< with having so far dorgotten his
vank as toagarey a fiddler's daugh-

1 tex, he at onge roplisd -+ Yes, my

Lovd, and ‘one of wy father-in:
ks favonrie fates was ¥ The
Ciipseys can’ to Lord  Cossilis’s
¢ yeit, —referring to the élopament

Gnei tor the’

of a Countess of C'asgilis with the ™
colebrated in the old
“Johmmy Faa” ' The

cairn by the niece of Govermor

Gipsey

Macrae, succeeded to his father’s

title as James, fourteonth Barl of
Glencairn, and is known as &
benefactor “of the Poet Burns,
This. Barl died in 1791, when ' !

Burns wrote his ¥ Lament for
Jaines, Earl of Glencairn,” con~

cluding with the following pathe-

tic lines :—

 The bridegroom may forget the brida,
Was muade his wedded wife yeatreon ;
The monarch may forget the crown
That ou his head an hour has heeu ;
The mither may forget tho birn ;
That smiles sue sweotly on her knee |
But 'l remember thee, Glencai,
And ' that thon hast done for me !”"

The fourth daughter ' of the
MacCluires married a young gen-
tleman of suspicious origin, who
went by the name of James

Magrae., This young man  was

said to be the nephew of the old
Governor, but he 13 generally sups
ged to have heen a uatural son,
he harony of Houston was con-
ferred upon theé pair, but the sub-
sequent career of this branch of

the family was far from fortunate.

A son known as Captain Macrae
became a reputed bully and pros
fested duelist at Edinburgh ; and

is represented in one of the caris

catures of the timé as practising
with a pistel at a barbers bloek
In 1790, Captain Macrae fought a
celebrated duel with Sir Gleorge
Ramsm.fr, in which the latter was
mortally wounded, 1t seems thay
whilst both gentlemen were dg-
corting some ladies out' of the
Theatre in Edinburgh, their ser-
vants quarrelled as to whoge car-
riage should ‘be drawn up at the

i
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door. Each of the gentlemen took
his sexvant’s part, and the resulf

was the duel, which occasioned

the death of Sir Gieorge Ramsay
and the exile and outlawry of
Captain Macrae,
n conclusion we must notice
¢ very few recorded events
which are still preserved of the
lagt years of Governor Macrae.
The old Anglo-Indian appears to
have passed some fifteen years in
his wnative 'country prior to his
death in 1746, In 1783, he was
admitted as a burgess of the old
town of Ayr, when his name was
entered as *James Macrae, late
Clovernor of Madras.” - In 1734, he
presented the citizens of Glasgow
with themetallic equestrian statue
of King William which still adorns
that eity. How heemployed him-
gelf during the latter years of his
life 18 nowhere stated, beyond the
bare fact that he lived and died at
Orangefield. We can easily, how-
ever, imagine the old man busy in
promoting the advancement of his

nieces, and in superintending the

estates which he purchased from
time to time. One of his last
recorded acts occurred in De-
cember 1745, when he lent £5,000
to the community of CGlasgow
to mect the sum which ha
been levied from them by Prince
Charles. Hediedsomewhereabout
the year 1746, and was buried in
Prestwich Churchyard, Such is
the eventful story of Governor
Macrae, the son of a washer-
woman of Ayr.——FEuetracted from
Wheeler's ¢ Old Madras’
Foradditional information about
Macrae, refer to Chambers’ Do-
mestic Annalsof Scotland, vol, I11,
p. 586 ; andin particular an. ac-
count taken from the Historical
Register for 1721, p. 253 of his
gallant fight with two pirate ships,

8th August 1720, The E, I. Com-
pany seem to have been greatl
gratified with' the report of thisg
exploit, and it doubtless led to
his promotion. -

MADHAJEE SINDIA,
SINDIA,

MADHOO ROW, vide Peisuwa.
MAHMOOD, vide “ Guor.”
MAHMOOD, »ide TocHLAX,

MAHMOOD OF GHUZNI,
House of,

SEBEKTECIN was an ennobled
slave and succeeded Alptegin as
Governor of Ghuzni. He died in
907 A.D.

Maamoop, of Ghuzni, was the
son of Sebe‘ktegin and succeed-
ed to the sovereignty of Khora-
san and Bokhara, in 997 at the
age of thirty. From his earliest
years he had accompanied his
father in his numerous expedi-
tions and thus acquired a taste
for war. According to the precepts
of the Koran, he considered him-
self bound as he asserted, to pro-
pagate the religion of Islam, and
80 after consohdating his govern-
ment west of the Indus, he car-
vied fire and sword into Hindoo-
stan. His first ' crusade against
the Hindoos commenced in August
1001 when he ' defeated Jeypal
who afterwards impaled himself
on the funeral pyre in regal state.
He made no less than twelve in-
cursions into Hindoostan, acquir-
ing great wealth by plundering
towns, temples and all their costl
images most of which blazed witﬁ
jewels.

‘I'he last and most celebrated

mde

expedition in which Mahmood was
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engaﬁed ‘was the ecapture and
'&Iun or of Sommath, which the

ahomedans consider the model
«of a religiouy erusade. It was
the most celebrated and wealthy
shring in India, containing an
establishment of 2,000 brahmins,

300 barbers to shave the pilgrims
after their vows were performed,
200 musicians and 300 courtesans,

Mahmood had to cross a desert

350 miles in extent with his army.
In 1024, he reached it, and found
that it was situated on & peninsula
conpected with the main land by a
fortified isthmus wellmannedwith
soldiers. | He attacked, and after
three days hard fighting, during
\'-'hichtheMahumegamsaometimm
wavered, the place was captured.

The following story is a 1laure
myth, and it i3 surprising ‘how
many historians have credited it
. and embodied it in their works,

* Vade * Garratt's History of India
* Prinsep’s Indian = Antiquities i
¢ Pickings from old Indian Books,’
Vol 1, p, &

* On entering the temple, Mah+
mood: was struck with its gran-
deur. The lofty roof was support-
ed by fitty-six pillars, euriousl
carved ane ri(:hiy studded wi.t?;
Precious stones. TFhe external
ight was excluded, and the shrine
was lighted by a single lamp, sus-

ended by a golden chain; the

ustre of which wis reflected from
the numerous jewels with which
the walls were emhossed, Facin
the entrance stood the lofty ido
five yards in height, two of which
were buried in the ground. Mah-
mood ordered it to be broken up,
when the brahmins cast them-
selves at his feet and offered an
immense sum to ransom it.  His
courtiers besought him to accept
the offer, and ﬁe hesitated for a

ages. He then struck the idol

under their blows, and peoured
forth a quantity of jewels and
diamonds, greatly exceeding in
value the sum which had been
offered for its redemption. The
wealth acquired in this expedition
exceeded that of. any which had
preceded it ; and the mind is be-
wildered with the enumeration
of treasures and jewels estimated
by the maun, The sandal-wood
gates of Somnath were sent sa a
trophy to Ghuzni, where they re-
mained for ecight ecenturics, till
they were brought back to India
in o triumphal procession by a
-Christian ruler,” (Vide ELLEN-
BOROUGH,) FEvery one who has
read * Lalla Rookh” must be fa*
miliar with the following lines :—

“ Land of the Sun | what foot invades
Thy' Pagods and thy pillar'd thades—
Thy cavern shrines, and Idol stones,
Thy monarchs and their thousand

\ - _ [Thrones!
"Tis He of GazxA—flercs in wrath

o comes, and India’s dindems

Lip seatter'd in his ruinous path.
His blood-hounds he adorns with goms,

Torn from the violated necks
Of many a yonng and lov'd Sultana;

Maidens, within their pure Zenana,
Priests in the very fane ho slanghters,

And chouksup with the glittering wrecks
Of golden shrines the sacred waters !

His power reached its culminat-
ing point two years after by the
conquest of Persia. He expired
_soon atter, his return from this ex-
pedition in the year 1030 in his

moment ; but he soon recovered

gixtieth year, day or two be-

‘himself, and exclaimed that he. .
would rather be known as the
destroyer than the seller of im-

with his mace ; his. soldiers fol-
lowed the example ; and the figure,
which was hollow, speedily burst



fore big death, he had arrayed be-

~fore him all the gold, silver and
jewels of which he had despoiled

ndia, and then burst into tears,
and he also held a grand review
of his army.

Mahmood’s court was the most
" magnificent in Asis; he had a
great taste for architecture and
erected a mosque of granite and
marble which he called the Celes-
tial Bride, and his metropolis,
which was once a mere collection
of hovels, became a prosperous
and flourishing city ornamented
with mosques, porches, fountains,
reservoirs, acquedactsand palaces,
o He was avaricions and rapacious
in acquiring wealth, but general-
ly employed it nobly and judi-
cionsly, He greatly encouraged
learning and founded a university
at Ghuzni which he furnished
with o large collection of valuable
manuscripts.  He also founded ‘a
musenm of natural curiosities.
Men of learning were attracted to
(huzni by his munificence, for
he set aside a lac of rupees a yoar,
(£10,000) for their pensions. A
new epoch of Persian poetry, of
which the Shah-Nameh is the
most eminent and imperishable
monument, was fostered and en-
conraged by Mahmood. During
his reign of thirty years, he ex-
tended his dominions from the
Peorsian Gulf to the sea of Aral,
and from the mountaius of Cue-
destan to the banks of the Sutlej.
He delighted to be dc.-'si%rmted as
the “ Image-breaker,” Histomb
is still proserved and stands some
tiree mileg from the modern city
of Ghuzni.

M anoMmMED, hig son, succeeded
him, but was blinded and thrown
into prison after reigning amonth,
by his brother

Masoon, who was a conrageous
and energetic monarch, He was
deposed after his defeat by the
Seljuks, and murdered in 1041,
by his nephew,

Anwmep, who with all his family
was murdered immediately on ad-
cession, in reveuge for Masood’s
death, i)y

Monun, who then became Sul-
tan, He lost most of his Indian
possessions, but annexed Ghor,
and died in 1053.

- Apur. HassAn succeeded him
in 1050, He owned nothing bat
Ghuzni itself. In 1051, he was
deposed by his uncle,

Anvr, Ragenm, who was soon
after murdered by a rebel chiof
named Togral, and with him end-
ed the immediate line of Mahs
mood. (No issue.)

Fanogsuap -was found in pri-
gon on Abul Raschid’s death, and
beéing connected with the house
of Sebektegin, he was placed on
the throne. He reigned peaceful-
ly, and disd a natural death in
1068, i

Teranim suceceeded and reigned
vmiy peacefully, He is supposed
to have died in 1089 and was suc-
ceeded by

Masoop I, who died a natural
death in 1114.

ARsrAN, his son, succeeded and
imprisoned his brothers. He was,
however, deposed in 1118, with
the aid of the Seljuks, by his
brother, Belram, who had es-
caped. '

Berray, after a quiet reign,
was driven out by s Ghoran
Prince, Seif-u-din, whom he de-
feated and murdered. The Gho-
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18 in revenge eanme and drove
off Behram and utterly destroyed
Ghnzoi,  The royal family Bed to
Lahory, and Behram died on the
Journey, 1152,

Knavero I, reigned at Tahore
and died a natural death in 1163,

o Kuuseu 11, at Lahore from
‘1163 to 1176, and with him ended
the Ghuznevid dynasty.

MAHMOOD SHAH, vide Duga-
NI DyNasTY.

MAHOMED ALL, vide CARN ATIO
Napons. ;

MAHOMED ALI SHAH, vide
Quou, N ApoB-VIZIERS OF,

MAHOMED BAHADOOR, the
lagt Padshah of Delhi—taken pri-
soner after the Mutiny of 1867.
( Vide TAMERLANE.)

MAHOMED GHOUSE,
CarNaTIc NABODS,

MAHOMED KHAN, vide Togs-
| LAK.

MAHOMED SHAH, vide 1'Am-
ERLANE.

MALCOLM, Sir Jonx, was born
in Langholm, Scotland, on the
ond of May 1760, Hig father
was a Tarmer, but a man far above
* his station, for he had been train-
ed for the' Church. John Mal-
colm obtained a cadetship in the
B, I Companys service, and
arrived at Madras in Aprii 1783,
whan only fourteen years old, but
an amusing incident on his enter-
ing this service miust here be told.
His youthful appearance led one
of the Directors, on his applica-
tion, to address him thus, “ t

vide

would youn do if you wefa'%?ibpéi- 1y
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sword and cut off his head.” | .
show of pluck was sufficient, and

he was passed as a cadet in spite,

of his youth. When' in 1784, a
treaty of peace was signedbetween
Tippoo Sultan and the English,
an exchange of prisoners was made,
and John Maleolm was appointe
at the head of a detachment to go
and receive the English prisoners
on our frontier, whither they were
to  be brought by Major  (Sir
Thomas) -Dailas, who, when he
gaw Malcolm approaching mount«
ed on a pony, said to him, “ Whare
is your Commanding officer 1! * I
am the Commanding officer” was
the reply, and a friendship sprung
up between them which only
death cut short.  In 1786, Tippoo,
on various pretexts, having at-
tacked our ally, the liaja‘h of Tra-
vancore, a second war was the
consequence. Malcolia’s regiment
with the Nizam’s army was onifa
march to Seringapatam, to join
the other British troops, and it
was then that he became acqnaint-
ed with two great diplomatic offi-
cers, Sir John Kennaway and
Mr. Greeme Mercer, which event
had the effect of turning Mal-
colm’s attention from a regimen-
tal to a_political and diplomatic
line of Jife. ' He therefore be

the study of Persian and Indian
History i1 good earnest, A re-
markable incident occurred abont
1701 in Malecolny’s life. = A post of
Asgtistant to the Resident 'at &
Native Court beeamie vacant ; he
longed and applied for it, but was
too late. 'This grieved him sorely,
but he soon had cause to be thau]{-
ful that events had turned out as
they liad done, for tho officer who
obtained the appointment was
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ranrdered on the first oceasion
“where) duty demanded  his pre-
sence;  The first  active  gérvice
in which he was to be engaged
was nob far distant, for in 1792, he
was under Lord Cornwallis at the
siege of Seringapatam, and hiy
conducth attracted this nobleman's
notice. Referring to this period
of his life, Malecolm proudly writes,
1 %1 served as a regimental officer,
with European and Native corps
(without ever having one week's
leave of absence) for nine years.
In 1792, when at Seringapatam, I
was appointed Persian Interpreter
to the detachment serving with
. the Nizam by the Marquis Corn-
wallig, on the express ground of
" ‘being the officer with that corps
best aualified for the station.”

In 1794, his health began to fail,
and at the eirnest request of his
friends and physician he returned
to his native land. In the follow-
ing year, he again returned to In-
dia, as Aide-de-Clamp to the Com-
mander-in-Chief, General (after-
wards, Sir Alured) Clarke. On
the voyage out, they found the
English and Dutch at war at the
Cape of Good Hope. Malcolm
was present at the wresting of
thia settlement, and its transfer
to the En%lish. Soon after his
arrival in India, General Clarke
was removed to the command of
the army in Bengal, and General
Harris who succeeded him, re-
tained Malcolm as his Secretary
and Interpreter,  He was next ap-
pointed Town Major of Madras.
On  Lord Welles'ley’s route  to
India, he touched at Madras,
where he met Malecoln, who sent
'his lordship several reports on
our relations with' the Native
i States, the result of which was
_ that he wag appointed Assistant
to the Resident at the Nizam's

Clourt, In 1798, the political ho-
rizon of Mysore was fraught with
portentous  difficultics. A way
wis anticipated with Tippoo Suls
tan, which dictated the necessity
of a most strenuously careful po-
licy with neighbouring Native
powers, The Nizam had allured
mtohis service a numberof French
officers who had organized a large:
body of troops and diseiplined
them according to European ideas
of military efticiency.  Lord Wel-
lesley hady determined, fo destroy
this French influence, and deput-
ed IKirkpatrick, the Resident, and
his assisvant, Maleolm, to accom-
plish. his' object, and the latter
.dispersed the French ecorps per-
sonally.  Lord Wellesley called
Maleolm to Caleutta, whither he
went with the colours of the dis-
banded corps.  The year 1799 snw
Malcolm accompanying the Hy-
derabad froops, which, according
| to engagements made with the
[ Nizam, were to co-operate with
| the Knglish in the conquest of
| Mysore and the eapture of Serin-
gapatam, Tippoo’s stronghold. All
was aceomplished, and Malcoln
writing of it, says, * on the 4th of
‘May all our labours were crowned
by the completest victery that
ever crowned the British Annals
of India, A state that had been
the rival of the Company for
nearly thirty years, was on that
day wholly annihilated,” A com-
mission wag appointed to settle
the new government of which
Malcolm was appointed one of the
secretaries, (Vaide KRisTya RaJ
Wapinr), So well had Maleolny
done his duty, that he was sent
on a mission to the Persian Court
it 1800, On his arrival in Persia,
after many intexrruptions, he was
Eresented- to the Shah at T eheran,
efore whom, ‘prior to entering
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‘upon political business, he laid
the

magnificent presents from the

British Government. Two treaties

. were negotiated, a commercial and
& political one, and Malcolin, after
establishing a good understand-

| ing ‘between the Persian and
British Governments, returned to
VIndia, and was sammoned by the
Governor-General to Caleutta, by
‘whom he 1was most cordially re-
ceived, and appointed Private
Secretary to his Lordship. But in
July 1802, the Persian Ambassa-
dor, Hajed Hulleel Khan, who
had come to India about the ruti-
fication of ‘the treaties, having

. been acéidentally shot in an affray
‘at Bombay., Maleoln was sent to
that  Presidenc
much ag possible such an unfor-
tunate occurrence.  Arriving at
. Bombay by land in October, Mal-
. colm propitiated the Shah and his

| ministers by letters explanatory
' and condoling, made them liberal
- grants of money, and so amicably
o settling matters, returned again to
Caleitba about the end of Novem-
ber. 'I'he second Mahrattah war
broke outin 1803, and Maleolm was
ot the second time appointed to
theResidéncy of Mysore, the claim
©to which, on the firet occasion, he
had yielded to a civil officer, Mr.
Webbe, to induce him to remain
longer in India. He proceeded
gtraight to the head-quarters of
the army, under General Welles-
ley, which was to atback the lower
part of the Mahrattah dominions,
while' Lord | Lake *was condust-
ing operations agaivst the upper.

After the restoration of the Peish- |

| wa, Bajee Rao, whode anthority
“had been wgurped  by-” Holkar,
i Maleolm fell i1, and had to leave
canip and vecrmit his health on
the sea-board.  He was not long
away, but during his absence, the

to. palliate as|

battle of Assaye in Berar was

fought and won, and it galled hin
to think that
General Wellesley at such a glos
rious event, Sindia, the powerfal
Mahrattah chief who had rebelled
against the Peishwa and joined
the Rajah' of Berar, Raghojee

Bhonslay, after many defeats, at

length sued for peace ; according-
Iy arrangements were made, and &
treaty signed ab Deoghom, in De=
cember 1503, which Klalc’olm_ had
drawn up. -

Bu-t-I-F olkar was still in arms,
and had plundered the temitories
of Jeypore and of other English

allies,  After several conflicts, he | i

hastened to the Punjaub with'the |
hope of gaining the assistance of ||
the Sikhs and Afghans, but being

cut off by Lord Lake, he sent his
‘envoys to the British camnp o sue |

for ‘peace, which was granted.
The: following amusing incident’
is told in ‘connection with- Mal-
colin’s | drawing up the treaty :
“ Maleolm wad giving an audience
to two or three of these agents,
when his friends Gerald Lalke anc
Norman Shairp suddenly entered
his tent, and, regardless Both of
ceremony and of business, told.
him that there were two lirge
tigers in the neighbourhood. The
interruption: came at a moment
when Malcolm was in 2nme per-
plexity with respect to the answers'
to be given to the envoys, so the

interruption was not unwelcome. ! |
Starting up and seizing his ever-
rveady aigun, he cried out to the

astonished Sikhs, ‘Baug ! Bang "
(“ Al tiger | a tiger!’) ‘and, ovrder<
ing his elephant to be brought

roundy rushed out of the tent ;
joining his friends, and two or

threo. others, he went in pursuib

of the game, shot the tigers, re-

turned with the spoil, and tf‘lén,

b1

¢ was away from | D0
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- replocing his gun in the corner of |

his tent and resiming his seat,

ook up the thread of the conver-

gation as if nothing had happen-
ed. The envoys, in the mean-
while, had been declaring that

the English gentleman was mad.

*But there was method’ it has
been said, “in such madness., He
had doune more than sheoot the
tigers,  He had gained time. He
had returned with his mind fully
made up on an important point,
which required  consideration.

. And the envoys received a differ-

ent and a wiser answer than would
have been given if the biger»hunt
had not formed an episode in the
day’s council.  The Honorable
Arthur Cole and the late Sir W
K. Gilbert were of the hunting

arty.” ! :
111805, Malcolm was again in

| Calentts  engaged  in political

duties, making treaties of alliance
with several Indian princes. In
the cold season of 1806, Malecolm
vatmrned to his post of Resident
of Mysore, where, on the 4th July
1807, he married Charlotte, daugh-
ter of Colonel Alexander Camp-

bell (afterwards Commander-in-

Chief of, the Madras Army). In

‘the early pat of 1808, he was

again sent on a mission to Persia,
which ‘ended in a total failure,
owing to the French influence
which had been established at the
Persian court, He repaired to
(aleutta, with a view of confer-
ring with Lord Minto (then Gov-
ernor-Gleneral) and it was decided

that Maleolm should return to.

Persia with a small force and dic-
tate terms, but the Court of Di-
rectors having sent a special em-
bagsy from England to the Per-
ginn court, clashed with thess ar-
rangements, and Maleolm, after
having sailed a short distance

down the Hooghly, was recalled,
He then again toolk up his old
post of Resident of Mysore, where
Just on his arrival the mutiny of
the Madras officers took place.
The sceds of dissension were
most strongly disseminated at Ma-
sulipatam, where the Madras Eu-
ropean Regiment was garcisoned ;
80 in July 1809, Maleolm = was
sent there, He adopted with the
discontentedofficers a com-,iliatoay
policy, too coneiliatory as consid-
ered by the Government, so he
veturned to Madras. He had not
been long here when he was again
ordered by the Governor-General
to proceed to Persia ; soin Jani-
ary 1810, Malcolm sailed for the
Persian Gulf, and was raceived
by the Shah with the greatest
cordiality, who conferred upon
him the Order of the Sun and
Lion, on his departure, in conse-
&&L‘I}ce of the appointment of Hiv'
. Ouseley as Ambassador at the
Persian Court, After ashort stay
at Bombay, during which he was
oceupied in completing the finan-
cial accounts of his Persian tnige -
sion and writing his History of
Persia, he sailed to England with
his family, where he landed in
July 1812, His History was
finished and published in Londen
in 1814 the same year in which
he was knightéd ; and on the 17th
of March 1827. Maleolm again set
foot upon the shores of India, and
was ‘attached as the Governor-
General’s Political Agent, with
the rank of Brigadier-General, o
the army under Sir T Hislop.
The whole of Central’ India at
this time was in a most unsettled
state. The Pindarees, a band of
robbers (originally mercenaries
in the employ of the Mahrattahs),
were in open_insurrection, invad-
ing and plundering the Com-
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any’s  territories. The whole
Sritish army was put in motion,
and dispersed these desperadoea.
Chettoo, theirfamous leader, while
seeking sufety in flight, was killed
by atiger in the forests of Asseer-
%gur, and. this | terminated’ the

indaree war, But as was ex-
pected, this war was a precursor
- of another with the Mahrattahs,
who had again thrown off the
British yoke. After several en-
gagements, the battle. of Mahid-
pore decided the fate of the Mah-
rattahs,  Malcoln  commanded
two leading  brizades in this bat-
tle, and made himself conspicu-
ous' by his bravery. He was
always in the front, whete ‘the
firing was the hotest; so much so,
thut at one time he got beiween
the cross fire of the enemy and
his own troops to rectity some
blunder, and came out of it un-
scathed afver having done bhis
work.  Holkar's power was now
completely crushed, and he sued
for pence ; the soldier-statesman,
Malcolm, drew up the treaty,
known as the treaty of Munde-
sore, by which a large tract of
country was made over to the
Eng]isﬂl and a subsidiary force

laced in  Holkar’s Dominions.

ut Maleolm had to deal with
another native prince also, Bajee
Rao, the Peishwa, who bhad
violated a previous treaty made
at Bassein in 1802. This was
attended with many difficulties
but he successfully ac::mnplished’
it din 1818, though not in ac-
cordance with the views of Lord
Hastings. (Vide NaNa Sauis.)
He was next appointed to the
settlement of Central India—a
tervitory long suffering from an-
archy and confusion. Writing at
this time, he says, * No business,
howeverurgent, and no meal, how-

ever hungry 1 am, is allowed to
revent the instant access of any
Eumau being, howeyer humble,
He is heard and answered, either '
at the moment or at an hour ap-
pointed by myself. TFirst impres-

siong are of too much importance .

to be hazarded by leaving applica-
tions to the commion routing of
moonshees, mouvtasardees, jema-
dars, ‘chopdars, and hurkarahs.
I employ all these ; but they ste

aside when any ane, from a raja

to & ryot, pronounces my name,
with the expression of a wish to
see me either from a motive of
respect, euriosity or business.!’
About 1819, Malcolm was snb-
Jjected to two very severe disap-
pointments, firet the loss of the
governorship of Bombay, and
secondly that of Madras.,  Fe

- expected deservedly one or the

other, but. Mountstuart Elphin-
stone and Sir Thoraas Munro were
appointed to the respeetive posta.
In' the early pat of 1822, he re-
turned to his family in England,
Five years later, after further dis-
appointmeuts he 'was i{zpcinmd.
Governor of Bombay, taking' the
oaths of office on the lst of Nov-
ember 1827. After serving in
this capacity for three years, he
left the shores of Indiafor the
last time. . On his arvival in Eng- |
land, he plunged deeply into
politics, entered Parliament, and
strongly opposed the Reform Bill
as a Conservative. But eventuilly
in June 1832, it was passed, and
Malcolm withdrew from the con-
test. While recovering from an
attack of epidemic cholers, he was
struck down by paralysis, and died
on: the 30th of May 1833. A
monument has been erected to
hismemory in WesttuinsterAbbey.
He was the author of the follovw-
ingworks: Zhe Historyof Persia
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Life of Lord. Clive ; Memoir of
Central India ; Sketch of  the
Sikhs ; Government of Indie;
. Political  History of Indaa, from

1784 to 1823, It is said Maleolm
sent his old schoolmaster, Archi-
bald Clraham, a copy of his ¢ His-
tory of Persia, with the words
“ Jock is at the bottom of it

written: on the title page, words |

" $hig worthy Dominie used to be
continually applying to him un-
~der the supposition that he was
the ring-leader of every mischief
at school. -

MARSDEN, Winanm, a cele-
brated Oriental scholar, was born
in Dublin on the 16th of Novem-
ber 1754, His family originally
came from Derbyshire and settled

' in Ireland at the end of the reign
of Queen Anne, and his father es- |

tablished himself in Dublin as a
merchaut on a large seale, Wil
liam was his tenth child, who after
going throngh the usual course of
edueation in the schools of Dablin,
was about to be entered at Trinity
Clollege with a view to the Church,
. svhen his eldest brother, who had
roceeded as a civil servant in the

. 1. Company’s service to Ben- |

_¢oolen, sent a very favourable ac-
count of his prospects, which in-
duced the father to apply for
another appointment in the same
quarter, l}[e was snccessful, and

oung Marsden embarked for

ndia in 1771, arriving at Bencoo-
len in May of the same year. The
establishment and community
there being small, his asgsiduity,
intelligence, and integrity soon
attracted attention, He became
first sub-Seeretary, and soon after-
‘wards Secretary to the Gavern-
ment, and as the duties of these
offices were not very laborious, he
had ample leisure for study and

inquiry. He set himself to mas-
tering the Malay language, and
rined that large stock of local
cnowledge which, being embodied -
in hig publications afterwards,
laid the foundation of his fame as
a writer.

In the swmmer of 1779, he quit-
ted Sumatra, with the hope of be-
ing able to push his fortunes in
England. Hisincome at the time
was only a few hundred pounds a
year, and his first attempt was to
procure a small post under Geo-
vernment.  He failed in this, and
resolved on literary  refirement
and the exercise of aprudent ¢co-
nomy. He soon mude the ac-
quaintance of Sir Joseph Banks,
and at his house met and acquir-
ed the friendship of some of the
most eminent men of the day,So-
lander, Maskelyne, Dalrymple, .
Rennell and Herschel. He next
becamsafellow of the Royal Soeie-
ty, and eventually of almost ever
learned society of note in England.
In 1782, his “yHisstury of Snmatra”
appeared and ivsured his literary
reputation. Ithas been translat-
ed into German and French, and
has maintained its name as a
standard  work to the present
time. : :
For fourteen years after his re-
turn to England, Mardsen wholly
devoted his time to literature and
soience, and it was his intention
thus to pass the remainder of his
life.. - When Sir Hyde Parker sail-
ed for India in 1782, he resisted
the temptation of accepting the
offer of the lucrative office of Se-
cretary ; and also in 1787, the
certainty of becoming an East
India Director, under the anspices
of the leading parties at the India
House. He, however,in 1795, in-
vited by Farl Spencer, on the
recommendation of his friend,
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second Secretary,and evertually
o begame  Chief Secretary. to “the
' «* . Butish Board of Admiralty, with.
| fhe war salary of £4,000~a year.

vHe held this post during the most

grapher 3:&&:3%%3];6'&&11&&011 of

glorious and eventful period /ind

the history of the British, Navy,
when the victories of Cape St.
Vincent, Camperdown, Nile.and
. Tyafalgar were added to the long
" seroll. ' In 1807, Marsdgn, - with
" failing health, resignéd the secve-
«taryship of the Admiralty, pnd
retived on a pensign of £1;500 per
annum,  The fruite of his leisure
were the Fuhﬁcaﬂion' of s Gram-
mar and Dictionary of ghe Malay
language, the most difficult,, ela~
Jborate, and enduring of .all his
literary labours, . Hehad brought
a portion of the materials with
him from. Sumatra, for he had
commenced the ecompilation of the
Digtionary as far bdck as 1786,
C.onsiderin“%thatthirty—three years,
had elapsed after he quitted Su-
matra, before these works were
published, and that consequently
the greater portion was perform-
ed without the assistance of native

. s

)

instructors, they afford the highest |

proofs of his industry, abilities,
and acuteness.  They have been
‘translated both into the French
and Dutch languages. He pub-
lished his translation of the Tra-

vels of Marco Polo in 1817, and |
the first part in 1823, and the |

second part in 1826, of his ¢ Nu-
mismata . Orientalia, or Deserip-
tion of Hastern Coing' a valuabie
collection which he had obtained
by purchase. In 1832, when se-
venty-eight years old, he publish-
ed s last work, compriging three
KEssays, the most important of
which is on the Polynesian or
. Hast Insular langnages; swhich
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‘with him<—in fact he was the fitst. <
to, point’ out the existence of.a
Irge Aumber of Sapserit words in .
all'the cultivated Polynesian lan-
‘ganges, and the siegular connge-
fion that exists among these/lan-
guages, extending from Madasas-

car to Easter Island. LR
In 1831, Marsden, ‘yolantarily .- 7
relinguished his pension 4o the " -«
ublica rave act of diberakity, * |
]fjn 1864, he.gave his rich collection’ :
of coins and edals to theButish »  * -
Musenm, and " his-extensive li- et
briryof booksdnd Oriental mann-
“seripts.to King's College, Eondon,
He hadea slight apoplectic attack .
in 18887 and in 183485 a second. .
anid a third, which  greatly pros-. .
traged- himy thongh not af"ectin ;
his memory. The last atinck took
place.-on. the 6th Qetober. 1836,
whenhe expired hurdly uttering
a gtoan, in the cighty-second year
of ‘a eraperous and well-spent
life. . Acdcording to'his own in-
structions,-he wad interred in the
cemetery at Kensal Green, Short-|
ly after quitting the Admiralty in
1807, Marsden marricd the eldest
danghter of his old and valued
friend Sir Charles Wilkins., She
survived him, and became the ae-
complished Editor of his ' Auto~
biographical Memoir,’

I
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MARSHMAN,  Josuua, D.D,
one of the Serampore Missionaries,
was born at Westbury' Leigh in
Wiltshire on the 20th of April
1768. After being apprenticed to
a hookseller, he eventually settled
ot Westbury Leigh and beeame
the Deagon of a Baptist Church,
The perusal of Clarey’s labours in
Bengal, induced Marsbman when &
he came to know that the Society
was in quest of labourers for that

field, to offer his services, which



he arrived in India. By diligent
and unremittingstudy be acquired
& complete knowledge of the

. Bengallee, Sanscrit and Chinese

languages. He translated the
following works into the Chinese
language : “The Four Gospels, the
Epistles of Paul to the Romans
and to the Corinthians and the
| Book of Clenesis;’ ‘'The works
of Confucius,” containing the ori-
inal text also, and prepared the
lollowing works in the sume lan-
guage; A dissertation on the
. characters and sounds of the Chi-
“pese language ;” published in 1809
“ (avis Sinica; BElements o

' Chinese Grammar, with a prelim-

inary Dissertation on the charac-
ters and colloquial medinm of the
‘Chinese,” 1814, Heassisted Carey
in the preparation of a Sanscrit
Clrammar in 1815, and a Bengalles
and English Dietionary in 1826,
an abridgment of which he pub-
lished in 1827, He visited lng-
land in 1826, on the subject of the
disagreement between the Seram-
Rlora Brethren and the Baptist

issionary Society, which led to
their separation. He returned to
Serampore in June 1829 where he
remained till his death, which
took place on the 5th of Decem-
ber 1837, a few days previous to
which arrangements were con-
cluded in London for the re-union
of the Serampore Mission and the
Parent Society. Dr. Marshman’s
name is well known by his con-
groversy with Rammohun Roy.
Hia letters first appeared in the
Priend of India and were pub-
lighed in London in 1822, in a
separate volume, entitled * A de-
! fenece of the Deity and Atonement
" of Jesus Christ, in reply to Bam-

mohun Roy, of Ca&cu’ct-a." He
died, having led a life of priva-

"~ were gladly accepted sand in 1709,

‘to the Mission.

tions during which, in conjunc-

‘tion with Mrs. Marshman, he de-

voted a sum little short of £40,000

MARTIN, Gieneral (AUDE, was
the son of a silk manufacturer at
Lyons.  Disliking his father’s in-

active profession, he chose one

more congenial to his disposition
by enlisting at an early agein the
French army, in which he distin-
guished himself so much that he

wasg moved from the Lafantry into

the Ca.valg', and on  the appoint-
ment of Lally to the Governor-
ship of Pondicherry in 1758, he
was appointed a trooper in his

‘body-guard, & small eorps of seleet

men.  Lally’s stern discipline in-
duced many of his troops to desert
to the English at the siege of
Pondicherry.,  Martin wag among
the, number when  Lally’s own
bady-guard went over to the Eng-
lish in a body, with their horses,
arms, de. With the permission
of the Madras Government after
the surrender of Pondicherry he
raised a company of Chasseurs,
from among the French prisoners,
of which he was appointed Ensign,
and with whom, a few weeks after
he was ordered to proceed to
Bengal, The ship in which they
sailed sprang a lealk and founder-
ed near the Godavery Delta, and
Martin, by great fortitude and
perseverance, saved himself and
most ‘of his men in the ship's
boats, Surmoanting many dan-
ﬁers and hardships, Martan and
is men reached Caleutta in the
same boats. Heve he rose to the
rank of Captain, and being an
able draftsman, was employed in
the survey of the North-eastern
part of Bengal and Oudh, While
employed in the latter province,

|he resided’ chiefly at Lucknow,
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~the Bnglish Government,  he

b}

entirely guided by his advice.,
#"Besides a large sdlary; with ex-
[~ tensiye emoluments attached o,

\tl
g

.

i) '-"1';11;51'9'1113 Nahot;:ﬁfizie?,' bx;;;ah-
- L dd-dowlah sdeing: hig ingennity
‘‘and skill in geveral branches of

mechanics - apd gunnery; made
him & tempting offer to” enter his<
gervice. With' the permission-of

entered the Vizier's service, re-
linquishing his pdy- and- allow-
ances, but retajning his. rayk.
JFrom this . date his prosperity
commenced ; he possessed an im-
mense influenca over: the Vizier
and, -his Minigters, who - were

‘the doors and window frames. . ",
The c&:ilinga‘ of the different apart= =

ormed of eliptic arches,
and the floors made of stueco..

nients are

g7t

“ This curious edifice is con- -
structed entirely of stone, excepl ;

The basement  story comprises,
two caves or recesses within the

banks of the viver, and level with 0
its surface when at its lowest de- 1
crease. In these caves he gene-
rally lived in the hot season, and |

continued in them antil the com-
"meéncement -of the rainy season,

when  the increase of the river . 1.
obliged him to remove, He then,  °

ascended another story, to apart-

it, he used to receive presents. of

ments fitted up in the manner of

' considerable walue. He madé a|a grotto; and when the further |

* large sum of noney by encoutag- | rige of the river brought its surface

- Hvery one had the utmost confi-
dencein him aud in fimes of com-
“ motion when personal moveable
property was at risk, he would:

ing the Prmee’s taste for Buro- | on a level with these, he proceed-

pean £’rodubt-ifmd,\ which he im-
ported.  Another source of gain
to him was the large system of
eredit which he established. Ne
publig loan ¢ould: be made with-
out: hig having ' a . share in  ib,

take 'charge of it, receiving 12
per cent..per annun on its full
value and guaranteeing its return
ondemand. Aftervesiding twenty-
five years at Lucknow, hie attain-
ad by regular succession the rank
of Lieutenant-Colonegl: On the
breaking out of the war with Tip-
pooin 1790, Martin presented the
%. I. Company with a number of

ed up to the third story. or ground
floor, which overlooked the river

when at its greatest height,  On T

the next story abovethat, a hands
some saloon, raised on arcade

projecting over the river, forme

E.is habitation in the spring and
winfer seasons, By this ingenious
contrivance he preserved a mode-
rate and equal Semperature in his
house at all seasons.  In the attic

story he had a museum well sup- .

plied with various curiosities ; and,
over the whole he ereeted an ob-
servatory, which he furnished
with the best astronomical instru-
ments,” 1 s
Besides this house he possessed
a beautiful villa at Lucknow on
the high bank of the Ganges, sitr-

horses, sufficient to mount a troop
of Cavalry. Soon after this he |
was promoted fo the rank of
Clolonel, and in 1796, Major-Gene- |
ral. Some - years after this ,hel
finished a curious house in the |
building of which he had long
been employed and which is de-
seribed thus': {

rounded by a domain about 8 miles
in circumicrence. In the latter
part of his life ‘he began to con-

struct a Gothic castle called the |

Martiniere, which he did not live
4o finish. Within, he butlt a splen-
did Mausoleum, in which he was
interred ; and on a marble tablet
over his tomb is engraved the fol-

L
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;  lowin ingcription, written by
© himself some months before hi
o death == -

JuRE 1ies CLATDE MARTIN §

it ‘Hi was pory AT Lyoxs, A, D 1732,

F1B GAMETO INDIA A PRIVATE SOLDIER,
AND DIED A MAJOR-GENBERAL, s

' During the Mutiny of 1857-68,
" the mutineers oceupied this build-
ing, and they opened his tomb
and seattered his bones. Somd of
the bones were afterwards found
and re-interred. :
| For the last fifteen years of his
life he was greatly troubled by
stone, and contrived a most inge-
' nious mode of reducing it, by the
use of a very fine thin wire cut at
one end like  file. He succeeded
by great perseyerance and excru-
ciating pain in twelve months.
Some yearsafter, however, the gra-
velly concretions again appeared
——but he did not choovse to resume
‘the same cure and sucecumbed to
the disease about the end of the
year 1800, He was not generous
during his life-time. His chief
objeet seems to have been to
amass wealth, and on his death he
left it for the support of pious in-
stitutions and public charity. His
Will was a most singular produc-
tion and as eccentric as most of
the actions of his life, His for-
tune amounted to 33 lacs of ru-
pees, (£330,000). . He bequeathed
to hig relations at Liyons, £25,000
and £26,000 each to the Munici-
salities of Lyons, Calcutta and
Lacknow, for the benefit of the
poor, £15,000 each to the Church
at Chandenagore, and the Roman
Catholic Chapel at Calcutts,
£15;,000 to endow an alms house
for poor children at Lucknow.
The remainder of his fortune,
about half, he left in legacies to
the women of his zenanah and his
principal gervants. The Will con-

cludes by expressing his regrets
for his sing which * were very
great and manifold,” and seeking
forgiveness of Cod through this
sincere confession,

MARTYN, Rev. HENRY, came of
achumble stock. His father was
a gimple miner jat Gwennass in
Comwall, and through industry
and talent raised himself to the
position of a clerl in a Merchant's
office at Truro, where Henry Mar-
tyn was born in 1781. Having
felt the want of a good education
himself, his father determined to
do his best for his children. After
a few years at a Cirammar School

-in Truro, Elenry Martyn went to

Oxford to try for a scholarshipin
Corpus 'Christi - College—-where
although passing an excellent ex-
amination, he failed. He return-
ed to the Truro Grammar School,
much disappointed, where after
remaining another year or two,
he entered St. John's College,
Cambridge, 1797, and came out
senior Wrangler in 1801, though
the study 0% Mathematics was
most distasteful to him at the
commencement. He had a weak
and sickly constitution };rﬂducing
as it often does, a fretful and irri-
table state of mind. This was
most strongly developed during
his stay at Cambridge, where, one
day, for some slight offence, ke
flung a knife at a friend, an un-
dergraduate, Mr. Cotterill, after-
wards minister of St Paul’s, Shef-
field. In his blind rage, be for-
tunasely missed his malri, and the
knife entered the opposite wall,
and remained there guivering
with the force of the concussion.
The same ebulitions of temper
oeeurred at his home during the .
vacations, but the death of his
father in 1800 affected ' his mind



. the letter K,
' now turned into' b different chan- |

* wery much, more especially as he
felt’ that he. had failed in filial
duty nnd fespect towards him,
and from thig date came the
‘dawning of piety, under the guid-
ance of ‘an<6ld friend whom he
had known at'[rure, whose name
is shrouded in the obscurity of

His thoughts were

nel, being ,di'rected towards the
great truths of Revelation, en-
couraged by an intimacy ,1-.'-'it.‘h_ the
Rev’Charles Sitmeon, the celebrat-
. els Evangelical preacher in the
.+ University of Cambridge.  He be-

1% ‘gan tostudy for the ministry, and |

on the 23rd" of -October 1803,
“Henry Martyn was ordained  a
. deacon of the Church of England,

and assisted My, Simeon in his
duties. * But while thus engaged,
a zeal for Missionary adventure
fired his enthusiasm, which was

strengthened by a sermon preach- |

ed by Mr: Simeon, on what good
might be done by o single Mis-
- sionary, who quoted as an illus-
tration, the work begunin Bengal
by Dr. Carey. He was thenordain-
0_5 “and through the influaence of
 William Wilberforce and Charles
Girant, Martyn obtained an In-
dian Chaplainey, and finally em=®
barked for India in 1805, De-
. fore'leaving Fngland, was a most
painful period of his life, for he
was str.ongg,r attached to a young
lady, named Lydia Grenfell. The
spirit aud the flesh struggled for
mastery, and through morbid, per-
verted and austere views of re-
ligion, he relinquished the hope
of marrying, though the last words
he addressed to the young lady
were, *if it should appear to be
Glod’s will that he should be mar-
ried, you must not be offended at
receiving a letter from me,” On
arriving in India, however, he

changed lis mind, and wrote $o

the young lady making an offerof
marriage. The letter was worded

in a most peculiar. style, which ©*
with other reasous, induced the ' .
Jady to send -him an ungualified |

refusal, It c¢ut him to the heart.
His affection for her burnt bright-
ly all through his life for he never,
ceaged corresponding with her in
the most loving fterms. Martyn
waz appointed Military Chaplain

at Dinapore on' the 14th of Sep-

tember 1806, and nd809, at Cawn-
poré on a salary of £1,000 a yeary
He devoted himself as soon as he
arvived in India to the studj of
Hindustanee, intowhich language
he translated the New Testament.
Failing health egmpelled hin to
leave Uawnpore for Caleutta.
While here he obtained permis-
sion from tha authorities to jour-
ney to Persia for “improving his
knowledge of its language, to ob-
tain assistarice in the translation
of the Seriptures, and to dispute
with the Moollahs,” and for the

‘benefit-of his health: On. his voy-

age round the Const. in 1811, he

landed at Gloa, and ‘visited the -
monument of Xavier. At Bom-

bay, he met Malcolm and Maclk-

intosh, where he made a favorable
impregsion on the former, who

gave him a letter of introduction '
to Sir Gore Ouseley, British  Mi-
nister at’ Persia. . Travelling ‘in
Persin in his ‘stote 6f health was
next to madness; it accelerated
his disease. Bub he was enabled

to finish the translation of the
New Testament into the Persian
language. About May 1812, he
started -from Shiraz, hoping to
reach England through Constan-
tinople and. the Continent, buf
the attempt brought on a fever
and'ague, which with consump-

tion terminated his career speedi~~

(87
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Iy, He died at Tokat, in Asia
Minor, about 260 miles from Con-
stantinople, on the 16th of Octo-
ber 1812, in the 32nd year of his

. age, Though a Military' Chap-

Iain, he was a Missionary at heart.
fle was a thoroughly pious, zea-
. longman in the cause of Christi-
anity, but he fook a morbid view of
lify, induced probably by indiffer-
ent health, Hisportraitistobeseen
in the Library of the University of
Cambridge, andamonumental tab-
et waserectod to hismewory inthe
chancel of Trinity Church,

MAYOQ, Earl: The Right Hon-
Courable  RI¢mARD  SOUTHWELL
U Botwrks, was borp in Dublin on
the 21st of February 1822, and
was educated at Trinity College.
' Fle was Chief Seerstary for lre-
land during Lord Derby’s first
administration in 1862 and was
made Privy Councillor ; he con-
tinued to hold the same office
during Lord Derby’s second ad-
ministration, 1858-59, and again,
with a seat in the Cabinet, during
Lord Derby’s  third ' administra-
© tion in 1866. In Aungust 1847, he
' was returned in the Conservative
interest, Member  for Coleraine
in the House of Commons, from
March 18562 to March 1857, when
he was returned one of the Mem-
bers for Cockermonth, In August
1867, he succeeded his father as
gixth Barl of Mayo, and arrived in
- Bombay, 18th December 1868, as
Viceroy and Glovernor-Gieneral of
India.” After a stay of ten days
gpent in making himself acquaint-
ed with everything connected with
the high office he was selected to
fill, he, proceeded to Madras vid

Beypore, where he w..s met by |

Lord Napier,then Governor of the
Presidency. Leaving behind him

thesame impressionashehaddone |

at Bombay, of his energy and ca-
pacity for business, he reached
Calentta and assumed the Vices
voyalty on the 12th' of Januvary
1869. " No Vieeroy ever took his
geat under such a torvent of op-
probrium from the Indian press,
as did Lord Mayo, and yet within
a few months he proved himgelf 5o
equal to hig high and responsible
office, that both the press and
public opinion arrived at vastly
different conclugions. ' 1e wasa
worthysuccessorof hisworthy pre-
decessor.  He immediately threw
himself into internationial and
political questions of vital im-
portance to India, to England and
to Russia—cquestions which had
formed the study of Lord Law-
rence for a series of years, and

by whose views, Lord Mayo

doubtless swas in a great measure

guided, The first great public
duty the Viceroy had to }:erform

was the interview with Shere Ali

at Umballa at the end of Mareh

1869, It is explained in Tiord .
Lawrence's life at what juneture
he saw fib to assist Shere Ali

how :£70,000 had been given—an

the balance due had been promis-
ed, and now it remained for Lord
Mayo to carry out what Lord
Lawrence luu.“t%egu..n. "Thebalance,
with an additional present of a
heavy battery of  artillery, a
mountain train battery and 10,000
stand of arme, followed the inter-
view, and though Shere Ali re-
twmed to Cabnl not having ac-
quired all he asked for, he return-
ed a contented man, for not onl

did he carry with him maferia

assistance in money and arms,
but an assurance of warm support,
guch as no ruler in Afghanistan
had ever received before, and this
pssurance was couched by Lord
Mayo in the following terms 1 —
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' Tearnestly trust, that on your
Highness' return to your own
country, yon may be enabled
speedily to establish your legiti-
nte rule over your entire king-
dom, to congolidate your power,
1o ereate a firm and merciful ad-
ministration in every province of
Afghanistan, to promote the in-
terests of commerce, and to secure
peace and tranquillity within all
- your borders.” !
“ Although as alveady intimat-
ed to you, the British Govern-
ment does not desire to interfere
in the internal affairs of Afghan-
istan, yet, considering that the
bonds of friendship between that,
Government and your Highness
have lately  been morve closel
“drawn  than heretofore, it will
view with severe digpleasure any
attemnpts on the part of your ri-
vals to disturb your position ag
ruler of Cabul and re-kindle
eivil war ;s and it will further en-
deavour from time fo time, by
such meang as circumstances.may
require, to strengthen the Govern-
ment of your Highness, to enable
you to exercise ‘with equity and
with justice your rightful rule,
and to transmit to your descend-
ants all the dignities and honours
of which you are the lawfal pos-
gessor,” !
%It iy my wish, thervefore, that
your Highness should communi-
cate frequently and freely with

* the Government of India and its |
officers on all subjects of public

interest, and I' ean assure your
Highness that any representation
which you may make will always
be treated with consideration and
respect.”

“By these means and by the
exercise of mutual confidence, I
entertain well-grounded * hopes
that the most friendly relations

between the British Go:vérnmeni:-
and that of your Highness may
ever be maintained to the advan-

tageof the subjects both of Her ‘

Majesty the.(jueen and of your' .
Highness,” : Ll

The mnext important question,
Lord Mayo was called onto deal’

with, wag the policy to be pursned. e

towards the savage frontier tribes, |
Within a week of his assumption,
of office, serions raids had oceur+
red in Hill Tipperah, the lower
villages of Sylhet, and iu the fol=/
lowing week on tea plantations

east of Cachar, Thoughhe fully
admitted the necessity for expe-

ditious against these tribes under

certain cirenmstances, he trustec

more to what he himself called, a'

policy of  vigilant, constant, and

never-ceasing  defence  on' all

those parts of our frontier, which' '
are, by their position, liable to be

attacked by foreign tribes,” and
in a letter written by his orders
to the Punjaub Governmienton the
subject, on the 7th November 1870,
after reviewing the causes of the
Mahomed Kheyl outrages, approv-
ingreertain stops proposed by that
Government for the punishment
of the offenders, and suggestin

measures for the improvement of
the {rontier administration geno-
rally, Lord Mayo added ; * But
the Covernor-General in' Couneil
will not conceal from his Honor
the Lisutenant-Glovernor his ap-
prehiension that this and all other
palliatives will fail unless the
frontier officers, from the Commis-

sioner downwards, will make it

one of their first duties to acquire
a thorough knowledge of their
digtricts, and to eultivate  easy
aud friendly intercourse with the
leading and influential men ;. un-
less they move freely and ¢on-
stantly about their distvicts in all
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| ensons; unlgss they are easily | concurred with Lord Lawrence’s

._aiccessibie toall clusses of the peo- | views, but added that chea 5 radls
ple, and are well versed in ' the ways must be had or no railways
vernacularlanguagesand local dia- | aball, He suggested the mareow
~ lects ; and unleys they are tanght | guage which onan average epsts
. to regard it to be thew paramount fwo-thivds less per mile than the
. duty to secutre the confidence and old broad guage, and when it is
. affections of the people cormitted | considered that ~the latter costs
to theiricharge® v £1T,000per mile, the saving ef-
With the fendatory ehiefs, | fected in some thousands of miles
Tiord Mayo was vory popular, for | is enormous, and 0 Lord Mayo
* hig genial, frank and manly bear- | we owe this ‘great change in out
ing inspired confidence.  He' was railway systém, and the preven-
.deeply impressed with the’ fact ) tion of an inevitable financial
that ignorance is the real cause of | pressure, s )
i the ‘backwardness and mis-go- | Besides act uainting | himselt
wernment of many Native States, | with the details-‘ of many  uselul

andeon his visit to Rajpootana, | projects, in some of which, work

these considerations induced him | was actually set on foot; he intro-
to fotnd the College at Ajmere, | duced an Aet which was hig own -

| svhich is associated ‘with his name, | —the Land Improvement, (Act

Hor the “education  of the chiefs| XX VL of 1871) Tho ,object ‘of
aud Thakoors.  The princes and | this measure was to extend and
nobles of the Rajpoot States con- regulate the system of giving ad-

‘' hibuted liberally, and he hoped it | vances of public money to Tand-

would be a model for the founda- | lords and tenants for the ‘con-
tion of similar institutions in | struction of minor works of agri-
othier parts of India. Every native | cultural " improvement--sueh  as
prince who met Lord Mayo looked | wells tanks, and subsidiary chan-
upon him as the ideal of an Eng-| nels forirrigation. He had taken

Lish ‘Viceroy. . j a great interest in the practical

" The question of Railway exten- | working of the Irish and Eng-
gion had engaged the attention lish Land [mprovement Acts, and
of Lord Lawrence, and just before while Viceroy wrote thus regard-
he  vacated, he wrote an clabo-|ingit: “Itigasystemunder which
vate Minute on the subject includ- | money ‘may be lent with perfect
ing its past history. e recom: | scenrity for the great end of mak-
wended the adoption of a differ- | ing two blades of grass, where one
ent system for the future, as the | only, or more likely in India,
(rovernment guarantee ]flan nright | none ever grew before” It was:
end in grave financial ‘disaster. | little that he was able to accom-
Phe plan he proposed was that the | plish in agricultural reforms, bufb
Govermuent should raise directly ' the time will come when the be-

| by loan"all money -for Railway | iefit. he inaugurated will be a

sconstruction, and  gain | for the | lasting memorial fo his honour,
revenues of India the full benefit | The financial difficulties which
of any profits that might remain } beset Liord Mayo’s adinistration
after paying the interest on bor- | were of' a mogh alarming nature,
rowed capital, - Lord Mayo wcuti and at the risk of a great deal of
inito the subject energetically and | unpopularity andl: a great deal of

¥ i

*
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abuse, he adopted vigorous mea-
gures to counteract them. “T don't
care’ he nsed to say during the
first year of his government *if 1
stop_every public work and sus-

end every improvement in India,

ub I will have the publie expen-
diture brought within the public
income.”  Much as he valued ma-
ferinl and social process, he valued
financial safety move, The In-
come-tax and Salt duties were
inereased in the middle of the
financial year 1869 and immenge
reductions of expenditire were or-
dered.  The finances of 1869-70
were  improved by  £1,700,000,
Whett reviewing these important
transactions eighteen months after,
he said, “We thought that the
honour and credit of the empire
were (at sbake. ' We took the
severe and, in most cases, the ob-
jectionable conrse of ordering ex-
tengive reductions in'expenditure
andof increagingthe bL‘ll'[tellS ofthe
population in the middle of the
year.” ' Remember, “he used to
gay to those around him,” you have
played your last card y mach &
step as this can mnever be taken
again”  The great result obtained:
by these measures was that the
gurplus: on the ordinary account
of the three years of his govern-
ment amounted to £4,800,000, and
including the extraordinary ex-
penditure for irrigation works and
railways, the outgoings have ex-

ceeded the income of the State by |
less than £150,000. Twomonths

after his arrival the estimates pre-
gented to the Legislative Council
showed for 1868-69 a deficit on
the ordinary account of £970,000,
and including thie extraordinary
expenditure of £2,800,000, For
1869-70, they showed a, sur-
plug ‘on the ordinary accoumnt of

£63,000, and a deficit, including |

the extraordinary expenditure of
£3,500,000, ._ e

As regards finance, Lord Mayo's
reputation deserves to rest on the
Provineial Services’ Scheme, not
thut it was an original measure,
for it was one which the lighest
authorities had long advocated,
but to him belongs the credib of
having had the conrage and en: . |
terprise to carry it into execution,
a.m{' it has more than answered
the hopes of its promoters. When
Lord {\Iayo became - Viceroy, he
found a system in foree by \\_ri;iﬁh
the Local Governments had no
financial control over the affairs of
their respective provinces, and no
financial responsibility. Every-
thing was rigorously centralized
in the Supreme  Government,
which took upon itself in detail
the provision of -funds for every
branch of the service in India.
The increasing demands from the
Local Governments for the means
of providing .every kind of im-
provement in their respective pro-
vinees, were unlimited. The Su-
preme  Government could not
check them, nor could it deter-
mine how much ought fairly to
be given to each provinee’s wants. !
Major-General R. Strachey (the
original author of the Provincial
Provinees’ Scheme) wrote,  The
distribution of the public mcome
degencrates into something like a
seramble, in which the most vio-
lent has the advantage with very
little attention to reason.  As
local economy leads to no local
advantage, the stimulug to aveid
waste is reduced to a minimum,
5o, asno local growth of the in-
come leads to an increase of the
local means of improvement, the
interest in developing the publie
revenues is also brought down to
the lowest level,”

i



e

o

Ll ."I'éoéidea; there were  constant
| *differences between the Local Go-

vernments and the Supreme Go-

vernment, vegarding questions of

- provineial adiministration of which

0 the former were the best judizes

o ahd the latter eould know little

of. I'his brought about serious

\ evile which were felt throughout

i the pablie service.

[ applied,

4 rade dver tothe Toeal Govern-
. nents by which they were tove-

o

The commencement of the offi-
' eial yedr 1871-72 saw the remedy
A certain ivicome Was

gulite  their local expenditure,
subject to certain rules and condi-

" 'teons.  They accepted the arrange-

< ments with alacrity, appreciating
7 the large increase of power accord-
led to them.
. bas proved that the measure was

Ho far, experience

a ‘most beneficial one. Tt has
sometimes heen spoken of as the
“T)e-centralization Scheme.” Lord

berm applied, immediately  pro-
tested, *I thought we were never

" fomse that word.”  In his opinion

the Supreme Government had not

. given up any control that it could

et E i

“usefully exercise. “The Local
Cloyernments were not to be al-
lowed to act otherwise than as

. administering  proymces of an
. Empire one and

indivigible.”
Mhe dearness and scarcity of
Salt, in Central India called forth
TLord Mayo's attention, the result
being that treaties were made
with the rulers of Jeypore and
. Fodhpore, by which the British
(lovernment obtained o lease of
' the Great Salt Lake of Sambhuy,

" with the complete control of its

| mnanagetont,

" Phere were ﬁia_ny reforms that
~"Tprd Mayo+had ab héayt,. w

hich

fnancial 7 difieulties wevented

Jnm from i]lﬁrccltming‘_ ' 1f-he had

whenever he heard that |

‘done 1o Taoré than restore 'onp L

finandces” to o sound condition, it

was sufficient to gain bim a-pldce

among- Tndian < Covernofs, ~He .«
saw and gacd more knowledge
about Indiain the three shortyears *

of hig administratien than moss |

mendoin alife time. Tn hisofficial
capacity alone he had travelled
over twant{—f-housand, mmiles, mak-
ing himself personally acquainted

with the greatest native chiefs,

noticing men of mark, opening

mines, railways and cc}h'eges; in-,

-

specting cotton fields. and model -

farms, salt mines and frontier out.

posts, and all works of public im-

provement. Most of his journeys

were performed on horseback, and

o

f

-

with his physical energy it was nd . '
uncommon  thing for him to ride

60, 70 and 80 miles a day. _
Lord Mayo took & deep intorest

in jails and jail diseipline, and he:

had - brought with -him, to India
great personal experience on the
subjeet, . Tt was thisinterest that

took him where that fonl deed .

was committed which has made

the Andaman Islands infamous

for ever, on the 12th February
1872. The Viceroy had gone theve

to inspect the penal colony. Jate

in the evening while stepping
into the boat from off the landing
place to return to the steamer, he
was stabbed twice in the back
by o convict, Shere Ali = Lord

Mayo simply said, “L am bit!”,

and fell into knee—d.ec{: water: He
never spoko again,and diedbefore

the bout could reach the steamer
onboard of which Lady Mayo wasy

The news when telegraphed sent

a thrill of indignation througliout:

theland. Theassassin wasaNorth:
ern  Indin Muassulman, - fearless
and passionate. . He had commit-
od murder before and was under
sontence of death, but this was



- he had rendered the English dur-

. significance.

o Ireland and interred within

in the land was a pure act of

ML,
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commmnted to transportation Aor
life on account of good services

Ing the mutiny. The act of as.
saseinating the highest anthority

revenge, and lad no political
He awas hanged  at
Port Blair, and was bold and feox-
less even on the gallows.  Lord
Mayo's body was taken to Cal-
cutta where after being laid in
ptate for a few days, it was taken

the ruins of the ancient church
of Johnstown, 26th April 1872,

When Lord Mayo received his
appointment, he gaid, © Splendid
as is this post, and difficult as
will ‘'be my duties, T go forth in
full | confidence, and hope God
will give me such strength and
wisdom as will enable me to di-
rech the Government of Indid in
the interest and for the welfare
of'the millions committed to our
care. In the performance of the
great work, I ask no favour; let|
me be judged according to my
actions ; but I'know that efforts
honestly made for the mainten-
ance of our mational honour, for
the spread 'of civilization, and the
precervation of peace, will always |
command the sympathy and sup-
port of ‘my countrymen.” He
was cub off in the full vigowr of a
bright carcer and the nation has
ﬂassed upon him the judgment

o asked and  deserved, Lord
Mayo was the author of a work
entitled “ St. Potersburgh and
Moseow,”

M LEOD, Sir DowAup FRIELL
was a son of the late Gteneral

tion,

tics, and drawing.

M'Leod, of the Bengal Engineers,
and grandson of a Bcnttisﬁ laivd,
Donald M’Leod, of Ross-shire. |
He was born in 1810, in India, |

“and ‘was sent home for his g(lit_é‘{t--. :
It is partly owing to thiy' |

cirecnmstance that he was abléin,

after life to acquire the rare ac-.
complishment of speaking the =
native language with faultless '

idiom and pronunciation. He was
educated first at the High School,.
HEdinburgh, and subsequently in
private ingtitutions in En%land,
until the year 1826, when he ob-
tained an appointment in the Ius
dian Civil Service, and procecded
to Haileybury wwhore he worked
hard, and took high honours i
the native languages, methemas
During the
first thiree years of his careevin
India he was employed at Mon- '
ghyr, in the provinee of Bengal ;
thenfor twelveyearsin the Saugor
and Nerbudda terpitories,  where
his name i3 still held in affec-
tionate remembrance; Tora short
time afterwards he assisted the
late Colonel Sleeman in theun-
dertaking which has immortalized
his name—the suppression of
Thugee ; and then for six years
filled the office of Magisirate of
Benares, « His success as Magis-
trate of Benarvesled to his promo-
tion, in 1849, to the important
post of Commissioner of the ter-
ritory, then recently  acquired
from the Bikhg, and known as the '
Trang-Sutlej "States.  Here hig
rare powers of conciliation had
ample  scope in smoothing the
difliculties and allaying the ani-
mosities incidental to the succes-
sive domination of Sikh over Raj-
oot and Englishmen over Sikh,
11854, he beecame Financial Com- .
migsionerof the Punjaub,and dups
ing the erisis of 1857 was, in com=
mon with Siy Robert Montgo-
mery, one of the trusted couneil-
lorsof SirJohn Lawrence, who hag
borne generous testimony to the




D vdng of his éervi‘qe, and his serene
| rand resolute bearing in that trying

| Lieutenant-Giovemor of the Pui-

2

eeived the honour of  Knight
| Commander of the Star of India,
“the Companionship of the Bath

11857, After  holding 'office for

. Indian service, whether in the

. their confidlence, to win them oyer

. the business of administration as

~ nition of upwards of

| powers g \
. measure which, after six yoars’
‘trial, has been recently pronounc-

‘the reins of government toi ano-
ther great statesman of the same
< sehool, the lateSir Henry Durand,
" and returned to England after a

‘or Lieutenant-Governor of a Pro-
| vince, the distinguishing charae-
teristic of Sir Donald M’Leod was |
{ controversy regarding the rights

Jate the system of administration

‘them, and Aiis regeme as . Lieute-

time. | 11 1865, he Was appointed

jaub, and shortly afterwards re-

having been already granted him
in recognition of lis services in

five years and a half as Lieute-
nant-Governor, he handed over

gervice of upwards of 40 years

durinf the whole of which 1}31‘i0(i

he only visited England once,
Mhroughiout his long career

capacity of Magistrate of a dis-
triet, or Commissioner of Division

a warm sympathy with the people,
and an earnest’ desire go to regu-

ad to, be in harmony with their
feelings, and thus, by enlisting

to hetter ways.

. He heartily advocated and acted
on the policy of making over to
the native populations somuch of

conld be prudently confided fo

nant-Governor was signalized by
the passing of a Municipal Act
for the Punjaub, which led to the
¢stablishment and formal recog-
: 300 native
Municipalities, with graduated
of = self-government--a

otl a great success,  He advocated

in_ eloquent terms a more loral

enconragement of Orfentalstriclies, *

snd o modification of the exclu- "

sivesystem of the Caleufta Uni-
versity, -which then reguired a
thorough knowledge of English
as a preliminary even to Matricu-

Tation. His educationalpolicy was

rveceived with enthusiasm by the
native po')plat-ion_; bt the  Cal-

cutta Syndicate was inmoveable,

An appeal was then made to the
people ; subseriptions poured in
from every side, and eventually
with the li%era‘tl assistance of Lord
Mayo's Government, a University
College was established in, the

Punjaub, of whichthe distinguish- -

ing features were the promotion of
the acqltusltmn of Western know-

of * ledge through the medium of the

vernacular, the encouragement of

Oriental learning, and the secyr-

ing to the native population a
fair representation i the govern-
itg body of the ingtitution. . In
like manner,  during the great

of tenants which  agitated the

Punjaub during the four years of

his "administration, . and resulte

in the passing of the Punjaub Ten-
ancy Act, two years before a simi-
lar nyeasture was passed for Tres
land, Sy Donald M'Leod while,
pechups from national instinet, a
gtout  champion of proprietary
rights, throughout supported the
principle, which was ultimately
adopted, of awarding compensa-

tions to fenants of long Btaudiuﬁ'

for disturbance and unexhauste

smprovements. He was honour-
ably connected for twenty years
with the chief afministrative
measuves earried out in the Pun-

I

jaub, of which a few may be

named-—the suppression of female -

infanticide—-the promotien  of

education—the extension of irri+

#
-



gating eanals—the development
of tea-planting in the Himalayas
—the encouragement of trade—
the establishment of local hospi-
tals—the conciliation of frontier
tribes—the appointment of native
honorary magistrates, the collee-
tion and publication of vital sta-
tistics, de,”

* But it is not only in the great
meagures  with which his name
is associated that Sir, Donald
M’Leod’s merit as an administra-
tor consists; it is to be fraced
gven more in the rare and instrug-
tive wisdom of his every-day offi-
cial writings and the influence of
his noble character. ' He was, in-
deed, a civilian of the true type ;
aman of great intellectual powers
- and highly eultivated mind, with

baundﬁesa stores of information,
but without a trace of selfishness
or egotism ;  straightforward and
uncompromising in all important
matters, but ever genial and ac-
cessible. 'T'he old woman who
waylaid: him in his morning’s
march about some petty village
grievance was as sureof an atten-
tive hearing as a prince, and the
young “griff” at his hospitable
table was as much at his ease as
the Commander-in-Chief. Letus
add that he was a man of fervent
piety and pronounced religious
opinions, but without a shade of
narrowness or bigotry. Devoted
to lis duty, he lived for India,
confinuing after his refirement to
take' the same deep interest in
the welfare of its people—nay, at
the very tims of his death he was
on his way to plead at a meeting
for the extension of Christian ver-
nacular ¢ducation in the Bast.”
In his personal tastes he was
gimple ‘and abstemious ; but so
liberal in his hospitality and in
his donations to charitable objects,

‘than his pension.,

‘racter is contained in a

that after upwards, of 40 years of
service he retived with little more |
Perhaps the
most striking tribute to s cha-
\ brief re-
mark made by a native-—~that ¢ If
all Christians were like Sir Donald
M’Leod, there would be no Maho-
medans or Hindoos.” 4 o

Siv Donald left no family. In
1854, he married the daughter
of Sir Robert Montgomery, but
she died in the following year.

1t ig singular that like his suc-
cessor, Sir Henry Durand, he met
with a violent death, It oceurred
by a slip at a Railway Station in
England in 1872, by which he was
crushed between the platform and

2 train in motion.

MEDOWS, Sir WiLriam, a dig-
tinguished officer in the service of
the E. I, Company, who had rerv-
ed in America before coming oub
to India, and was wounded at the
battle of Brandywine. In the
course of 17688, Medows was ap-
pointed Governor and Command-
er-in-Chief of Bombay, through
the instrumentality of Cornwallis,
and soon after was transferred in
a similar capacity to Madras. On
the breaking out of Tippoo’s se-
cond war, Cornwallis was about
to tale the field in person, but
hearing that his friend Medows
had received the appointment re-

ferred to, he entrusted the war

fully to bim. His first operations
against Tippoo were unsuccessful.
.l.éuye writes of him thus: “DBut
the noble soldier is not always the
accomplished Cleneral, and the high

nalities which digtinguished Me-
lows were not those which com-
mand success in such operations
as were now confided to him, He
took the field: under many dis-
advantages,  His army was ill-

us



- great delicacy of feeling,

1 mb

equipped’; the country and the

modé of warfare were new to him. !

. He was imperfectly acquainted

with the resources of the eneny, -

and was too eager for action n
detail to take a comprehensive

view of the general demands of

the campaign before him.  He
was blamed for dividing his forces
i such a manner as to expose
them to disaster by the impossi-
bility of supporting them when
engaged with superior bodies of
the enemy ; and it is not to be
doubted that the army was harass-
ed and wearied without attaining

j i any proportionate results,” Me- !
©dows was making no way, and the

digaster that fell on the foremogt

. tivigion of the army under Colonel |
. Floyd, by a masterly movement |
of Tippeo down the Ghuzelhutty

Pass, awakened Lord Cornwallis’
fears, and he decided upon taking
the ficld in person. 'In fact he
superseded. Medows,  but w%}h.
He
wrote to Dundas, ‘“1 hope you
will give Medows full credit in
England for his generous and
noble conduet on the trying oe-
casion ‘of my su}ierserlmg him
in his command, I knew the ex-
cellence of his temper and his
heart, but he has really, in this
 dnstance, sur%assed my expecta-

tions. | It is, besides, but justice
to him to observe that, owing to
untoward accidents, the first in-
telligence he had of my coming
was attended with the most mor-
tifying  circumstanes, for al-
though T had, out of delicacy,
kept my resolution a profound
secret for three weeks after I had
written my intentions to him, it
unluekily happened, owing to the
interruption of the posts, that he
first heard of it from the Madras
Board.” The eapture of Banga-

lore by Cornwallis and the eourse

of the campaign me  mentioned
in his life, | ( Vide CorNwALLIE),
Nundidroog, one of MTippoos
strongholds, 31 miles {romn Ban-
galore, situated 'on a/precipitous
granite rock rising some 1,600 feet
above the Mysore platean, it was
lanned, should be attacked be-
ore the second advance on Serin-
%&patﬂx_ﬂ wasmade. A practicable
reach’ having been made after
two week's incessant labour, Me-
dows offered his gervices to com-
mand the detachment which was
to agsanlt, and Lord Cornwallis
accepted  them. In the bright
moonlight of the moming of the
19th ef October 1791, the storm-
ing party advanced with Medows
ab its head. 'When the order was
given' to move forward, it was
riimonred that there was a mine
beneath.,  Medows replied, “If
there be a mine, it'is & mine of
gold.”  The breaches were soon
carried, and thus fell in a three
weelds regular giege, Nundidroog,
a fortress which when besieged by
Hyder, was not surcendered by
the = Mahrattahs until! after a
blockade of three years, )
The war progressed, and on the
night of the 6th of February
1792 Cornwallis determined apon
the  storming of Seringapatam,
General Megows was 1o com-
mand  the  right, Colonel Max-
well the lefs, and Cornwallis 'the
centre division. The left and
centre divisions were successful,
the latter bearing the brunt of
the fight. Yeneral Medows “ b
ene of those accidents to whic

[all operations in the night must

be liable,” failed to accomplish hig
work. . On meeting in the morn-
ing, under a moment of irritation,
Cornwallis asked, * Where Glene-
ral Meédows bad been disposing of
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Timself.” This cut him ta the
quick.  Butthe fort of Seringapa-
tam was not taken yet, and Me-
. dows yearned for the day when

‘its siege should be commeneced so
that he might distinguish himself.
Flo said, © T will never quit this
country till I have commanded
the storming party at Seringapa-
tam.” “Tn this he was disappoint-
od. After much negotiation, and
* any hitches, Tippoo surrender-
ed, delivered two of his sons to
‘Clorpwallis ag hostages, and agreed
to sign a treaty of peace. (Vide
 Urose) All Medows' hopes of
retrieving his honour were now
crushed, and in desperation, when
the salute was being fired at the
approach of the Princes towards
Cornwallis’ - tent, Medows dis-
charged a pistol loaded with three
slugs into his body. They were
promptly extracted and most mi-
vaculonsly Medows recovered and
hecame reconciled to himself and
the world. ‘An interesting account
is given in ' the “ Memoirs of a
Field Officer,” too copious to ex-
gract here. Of his after-career
nothing is known,

MEER COSSIM, son-in-law of
Meer Jaffeer, was declared Nabob
of Bengal in. 1760, when the lat-
ter was deposed by the Council
at Calcutta, for their own greed
of gain. To them, making a Na-
bob, was making money. Meer
C'ossim, as the price of his eleva-
f1om surrendered to the Compan
three distriets of Bengal, whic
yielded a third of its revenue, and
also gave a gratuity of 20 lacs of
Rupees, (£200,000) to the Mem-
bers of Council.
The unjust’ demands of the
Company’s seivants regarding the
inland trangit dutics, léd to hosti-
lities, in which tho successes of

the English  exasperated Meer
(fogsim to such a pitch that he
ordered the execution of all the
English residents at Patna, about
150 men, women and children,
The officers deputed to this work, -
replied, they were soldiers, not
exeoutioners. - Turn them oub
with armg in their hands, and we
will fight them to the death,”
said they. But the bloody deed
was performed by Reinhard, who
had formerly been a Serjeant in
the French service, and afterwards
went under the name of Sumroo,
He proceeded to the house which
contained the Knglish prisoners,
with a file of soldiers, and poured
in volley after volley till n{l were
killed. After the battle of Buxar,
Meer Cossim took refuge in flight
andnothing more washeard of hin.

MEEER JAFFEER, an incompes
tent and weak man appointed =
Nahob of Bengal by Clive, on the
dethronement of Suraj -a-Dowlah.
Brief particulars of his career are
given in Cliye'slife. In 1760, he
was deposged, and Meer Cossim
made Nabab, (vide Mrpr (os:

gra) 5 in 1763, Meer Jaffeer was

again restored, He died of old
age and infinnities, in January
17656. The ' extortions and de-

uands made on Meer Jaffeer dur- |

ing the latter period of his life,

by the Council at Caleutta, were = I

most disgraceful. . Clive, on his
arrival for the third time from
England, rooted out all these
abuses, ' |

METCALFE, Sir CaArLEs THEO-
paILus, the second son of an
officer in the E. I. Company’s
gervice, was borm in Claleutta on
the 30th of January 1785, Having
amassed a large fortune in India,

hig father refurned to England
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and had hig sons placed first at a
privateschoolat Bromley, a suburh
of London, 'and  afterwards at
Eton. At the 'age of fifteen,
Charles' Theophilug was sent out
for a career in the Indian Civil
Sevvice, arriving at Caleutta on
the 1st Jannary 1801, during the
administration of Lord Wellesley,
who had about this time estab-
lished a College at Fort William
for giving the young men who
wrere then sent’ out to fill most
important posts, more crportuni~
1y for advancement in learning ;
and young Metealfe was the first
to enter this institution. His
first year in India was spent in
| great despmidency, and he wrote
to hig father telling him that he
“hated India” and wished to re-
twrn home.  Those were not days
when P, and O. steam boats and
amilways | conveyed missives 1o
England within three short weeks ;
the tortuous Cape route was the
only one, and an answer in twelve
montlis  was  considered  very
quick. Ere this period elapsed
Metealfe had got more reconciled
to the country, and when the
answer from his | parents  did
come, it only settled the determi-
nation already formed in his own
mind, of carving out a name for
himself in the scroll of Indian
History. The answer was accom-
‘panied by a hox of pills, and
thesge words  from his mother,
“You may laugh at my sending
them, but I think you are billions
and they will be of great sexvice.”
At the end of the year 1801, he
was appointed Assistant to the
Resident at Sindia’s Court. Here,
he fell out with his superior offi-
cer, Colonel Coling, who is de-
seribed as o man of an imperious
and overbearing tempor,~asked
permission to resign his appoint-

ment and returned to Caleutta
where he entered what was called
“Lovd Wellesley’s office,” and in
which his training of eighteen

‘months’ duration proved of im-

mense value, On the outhbreak
of the third Mahrattah war in
1804, Metbealfe was appeinted Po-
litical Assistant to the Clommand-
er-in<Chief, and on his way to
join the head-quarters of  the
army. was attacked by a gan
of robbers, and severely mauleff
His Chief had a great antipathy
to civiliang, 80 the presence of
Metealfe irvitated him. As a
soldier he was all for fighting, and
quite despised the peaceful oecu-
pations of the other hranch of
the Company’s Service. This be-
came known' to  Metcalfe, who
took the first opportunity of prov-
ing the stuff lie was macle of, At
the storming of the fortress of
Deeg, he volunteered to accom-
pany the storming parg and 'was
one of the first to enter the breach,
which sent him up amazingly in.
the estimation of the Chief, who
* made most honorable mention
of him in his Despatch,” and ever
after, spoke of him as his “ little
stormer.” When the last blow
was struck against Holkar, Met-
calfe was sent into his camp, as
the bearer of assurauces of the
friendship of the British, !
His next appointment, on the
conclusion of this war in 1805,
was Assistant to the Resident a
Delhi, and from here in 1808, he
was sent on a political mission to
Runjeet Sing, at Lahore, the ob-
ject of which was to check the
designs of Russia, With great
patience, skill and tact, Mefcalfe’s
negotiations terminated in a trea-
ty of friendship being drawn up
between the Sikhs and the Bri-
tish—-a treaty which remained in-
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son !

the Sikh Chi¢f and the En

lish Statesman, during Minto's
administration. This was  the
making of Metcalfe’s fortune : he

was appointed Resident af Sin-

dia’s Conrt, and at the early age
of twenty-six, Hesident at Delhi.
Here he seemed to have sunk
intogreat des?:ndency andlonged
for bis native land. But there were
gtirring fimes before him for the
fourth Mahrattah war was going
on (1817-19). 1t was his to re-
gtore order among the great Raj-
poot chiefs, and to bring them
into friendly alliance with  the
British, All was accomplished,
the war concluded, and Met-
calfe was appointed  Political Se-
eretary to the Indian Government.
This post at Caleutta did not suit
him, and anxious to leave it he
songht other duty. The year 1820
saw him ingtalled in the Residen-
,tiy of  Hyderabad in the Deccan,
"his tract of country was in a
most deplorable state—the Nizam
immersed in debt, paying ruinous
interest, exforting money out of
his people to meet every emergen-
(ﬁ, was sinking deeper and deeper.
e was held fast by the great
banking firm of Palmer and Co., ag
well as by local money-lenders.
i Viele ParvEer.) Metcalfesaw clear-
ythat theexistenceof the Hydera-
bad State depended much uponhis
independent action. The partners
in the great firm above alluded
to were all personal friends of his
—but he saw his duty clearly be-
fore him, and walked in its path.
His uncompromising conduct af-
focted seriously the finances of
Messrs, Palmer and Co.; and he
himself for awhile came under
the displeasure of Lord Hastings,
then Governor-Gleneral, but both
became reconciled after an expose

of past doings was made, The

‘unsettled state of upper India

led to the re- IE}p011111::0{1-31f11: of Met-
calfe to the Residency of Delhi,
(mide Sir Davip QOCHTERLONY),
and Lord Amberst, who thongh
at first oppesed to Ochterlony’s
active meagures had  removed
him from 'his pest, atterwards
changed his mind, and resolved,
that if *“expostulation and 'res
monstrance” should fail to estab-
lish and maintain the rightful
heir to the Raj of Bhurtpore,
Balwunt Sing, who was dethron-
ed by his cousin, Doorjan Saul,
measures of force should be re-
stored to. All Metealfe's coneili~
atory measures failed, and on
the 10th of Deceinber 1825, the
English army was before the cele-
brated Jat fortress, Bhurtpore.
The siege commenced, and Bhurt-
ore, the sironghold, before which
ale had been four times repuls-
éd in 1805, was captured on the
18th of January 1826. ( Vide Com-
BERMERE,) | :

In 1827, a seat in the Supreme
(Cfouncil at Caleutbta was conferred
upon Metcalfe, and on the resig-
nation of the then Governor-
General, Liord William Bentinck,
in 1835, he was nominated * Pro-
visiuua.i Governor-Gleneral.” Dups
ing his administration he passed
an Act liberating the Indian Press

from all restrietions, which gave

great umbrage to the Directors,
and led him to resign his office
and return to Epgland in the
early part of 1838. After a brief
residence at Fern Hill, Berks

‘which with the paternal title had

descended to him on the death
of his elder brother in 1895, he
was offered the Governorship of
Jamaica, which he accepted, and
wag installed in that office on the:
2lst of Beptember 1839, An uls



' to the peerage.

e

cerous affection in his cheel,
first began. to show itsélf
at Calontta and  was unarrested:

which

in England, *was much increased
biY the climate of Jamaicy, so
after a rvesidence of two ' years
there, he again refurned to Eng-
land, | Heve most painful remedi-
al measures were adopted, which
proved temporatily beneficial, and
mnch to his surprise in 1842, he
wie offered the Governor-Gene-
ralghip of Canada and was raised
Thither he went,
dificult as the Government was
in the then troubled state of Ca-
nadian politics, and he continued
ab hig post under the increasing
_Im._infulness of hig incurable ma-
ady, till he lost the use of vne
‘aye and even articulation became
difficult-—-dying a slow' death.
Tie resigned, returned once more
'\ to his native country in 1845, and
.+ died on the 6th of September
1846 | He wag never married,

MIDDLETON, Toomas FAN-
AW, 1LD., the first| Bishop of
Claleutta, wasg born at Redleston,
in Derbyshire, on the 26th Janu-
ary 1769, and was the only son
of the Rev. Thomas Middleton,
rector of that parish. e was ad-
mitted into Christ’s * Hospital,
London, in 1779, and from tlience
he proceeded to Pembroke Hall,
Clambridge, where he took his de-
res of B, A, in January 1792,
11797, he married Elizabeth, the
eldest daughter of John Maddi-
son, Bsg., of Gainsborough, who
assisted lhim congiderably in lds
literary labours, by transcribing
all his manuseripts for the press.
He filled vavions ecclesastical
posts till 1811, when he fixed his
residence at St. Pancras, and be-
came acquainted with several dig-
nitaries of the churéh and other

distingishied mdividuals, | 1t was ||
about this time that the K. T, =

Compnany's * charter was renew-
ed, and in the Act a provision was
inserted enabling

Middleton was immediately ap-
pointed to fill the newly consti-
tuted See. He was consecrated

L ¢ CUrown t0
congtitute a bishopric in India.

.

by the Archbishop of Canterbuty

on the 8th of May 1814, received
an address from the Society for
the Promotion of Christian Know-
ledge, of which institution he was

a warm supporter—was elected #

Fellow of the Royal Saciety—-and

sailed on the 8th June for Caleut-
ta, where he arrived on the 28th

of November, During the voya

he employed himself m the study
of Hebrew and Persian.  Af Cal-
cutta he made eve
mote the cause of Christianity,
and to aid the canse of education,

He made three tours through his. |
extensive diocese, and particular-

ly directed his attention to the

gtate of the Syrian Christiang
near (Jochin, on the coast of Ma+

labar. The Bishop's Collage at

‘Caleutta was established by his

efforts for the education of clergy-
man  and missionaries for the
British possessions in the Kast,
and he laid the foundation stone
of the buildings on the 15th De-
cember 1820,
Consistory Ceurt at Caleutta, and
intended to do the same at Mad-
ras, but was deterred by the opini-
onof the Advocate-General, who
prononnced the measuve illegal,

Middleton died, at Caleutta of
a fever on the 8th of July 1822,
in the fifty-fourth year of bis age.
By instructions contained in his
Vill, his papers wereall destroyed.
His only work that appeared was
the ¢ Dagctrineof the Greck Ar:
ticle.

effort to pro-

He established o
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he object of Bishop Middle-
ton's work on the Gireek  Article
19, first, to estublish the rules
| which gf}ven_a the use of the arti-
cle, and then to apply these rules
to the interpretation of various
passages in the New Testament,
many of ‘which are of such a 1a-
ture that they furnish arguments
for or against thé divinity of
Christ, aceording to the different
views which are taken of the
force of the article. Owing to
this eircumstance the doctrine of
the Greek Article has become the
subject of warm discussion among
theologians ; and some Unitarian
divines have strongly opposed the
views of Middleton, His chict
rules have, however, been received
ag sound by the great majority of
biblical eritics. "A second and
improved edition of Middleton’s
work was edited by Professor
Scholefield in 1828, and a third
edition by the Rev. Hugh James
Rase, 1833, An abstract of the
worlk i3 prefixed to Valpy's edition
of the Gireek Testament.”

MILLER, Major-Giencral W, H.,
C.B, was ason of Major Miller,
of the ROKnI Haorse Guards (Blues),
and was born at Windsor in May
1805. He entered the Madras
Artillery in 1823, and, after a long
and faithful service of thirty-six
years in India, retived from the
army n 1860. He served with
the force of Col. Tivans, C.B., em-
ployed against the insurgentsin
the Nuggur province of Mysore
in ﬁprii May and June, 1831
and was pregent in the affairs o
April 23 and 30, May 1, 2 and 16,
1831. ' But the gallant Gteneral is
“chiefly known  for his services
with the Saungor Field Division,

under General Sir C. Whitlock,
in the Bundelkuud campaign of

1858, where, as brigadier com-,
manding the artillery, he 'was'
present at the actions of Jheens -
jun, April 10, and of  Kubrae,
April 17, 1858, At the famous
battle of Banda, April 19, 1858,

while performing a conspicuons =

act of gallantry, he was severely

wounded, losing his right arm. |
For these distinguished servicey

he was appointed & Colonel and ~
Aide-de-camp to the Queon. | He
was also nominated o Companion
of the Bath on attaining the ho-

norary rank of Major-Gleneral,
Shortly after his retirement from
the Indian army, and arrival in
England (1860), jenera,l Milleriset
his vigorous mind to worlk in ore
der to vindicate the right of his e

nowned grandfather, Patrick Mil-)

lex, of Dalswinton, to be regardeéd
48 the first inventor of practical
steam navigation, " This i3 adimies
ably doneinapublished * Letterto
Bennett Wooderoft, Bsq,, ¥, R.S.”
of the Patent Office ; an attentive
perusal of which would convinee
any one that the energetic General
hadthestrongestreasonsior elaim-
ing “the absolute right and title to
the honour of being the true dis-
coverer and originator of practical
steam ‘navigation” (1788), *for
Patrick Miller, of Dalswinton.”
The grandson relates that his il
lustrious relative’s experiments in
artillery and navigation, including
those in' the latter with steam,
“are well known to have cost My,
Miller above 20,00047  For seve-
ral years the name of (eneral
Miller was occasionally brought
before the public in' conneetion
with the famous Banda and Kir-
wee case of prize money, As Pre-
sident of the Prize Committee, his
labours were incessant in the
cause, and the worry and brain-
work attendant on such a diflieult
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'position perhaps Tnsfened the end
of the lovediand ever-genial Anglo:
Indian-—one of the fine ' old fa-
miliar faces,” never to be forgot-|
ten by those who knew him-—
who, many of his friends thought,
promised to enjoy an hononred
oveen old agel e died at lus
residence  in | Kildare Gardens,
Bayswator, on the 15th May 1873,
and his remains were interred in

nesday, May 21,

UMINTO, Lorp, sueceeded  Sir
L George Barlow as Governor-Cle-
Zmeral of India, arviving at Calout-
'\ taon the 31st July 1807.  He had
always taken a great interest’ in
the affairs of India, and was one
. of the managers appointed by the
| House of Commong to conduct
the impeachment of Warren Has-
tings, and also the prosecution of
Sir Elijal Impey ; and at the time
he was elected Governor-Cieneral,
he filled the post of President of
the Board of Control, having held
swhich for twelve months, he had
gained a great insight into Indian
affairs. ;

He came out fully imbuaed with
the non-intervention policy of the
Tndia House, but had not been
many days on the banks of the
Haoghly ere he confessed that the
geewrity of the Dritish Empire in
India mainly depended upon the
supremaey of our power.

The renewed alarm about the
degigns of Napoleon on our Hast-
arn possessions indueed Minto to
form many embassies, and extend
our = diplomatic relations.  (Vide

' Marcorar, RuNIger SiNg, Er-
PHINSTONE)., | Napoleon, after an-
nexing Holland to his empire, in-
cinded all the Malacea or Spice
Islands, colonized by the Dutch.
Minto sent an expeditionl to con-

Y

query and  anvex themto the
British possessions in the Bast.
Araboyna was the first to surren:

der. afber a day’s cannonading,

17th February 1810, The five de-
pendent islands then quietly sub-
mifted, and the Amboyna expedi-
tion, re-enforced by Captain Cole,
drove the Duteh from their strong
works on Banda Neira, and by
the month of August reduced the
whole group of the nutmeg pro-
ducing Banda Isles, ' :

"The only: possessiong now re-

 maining in the hands of the Dutch

gubjects of Napoleon in these seas,
were the island of Java and some
gettlements on the far richer and
larger island Sumatra, | SirStame-
ford Raffles suggested to Minfo
the reduction of these settlements.
During a short residence on the
coagt of Malaeea, he had aequired
a vast amount of information con-
cerning the Indian ‘Archipelago,
and when Minto started with 51&
expedition in person, Haffles ne-
conmpanied - him and materially.

aided those intrusted with com-

mands.  About the middle of
May 1811, the whole of the. expes
dition reached Malacea, the plaece
of rendezvouns, Thence, on the
recommendation of Rafiles, the
fleet took the south-west passage
between Carimata” and Borngo
and gucecessfully reached Batavia,
Our land forces 'were under the
command of General Sir 8. Avch-
muty, divided into four brigades
amounting to 12,000 men. The
troops suffered fearfully from the
climate ; at one time there being
5,000 men on the sick list. = Bata-
via, which the Dutch called the
¢ Queen of the East,” suarrender-
ed on the 8th of August, the gar-
rison having retreated: to Wel-
tevreden and thence to Clornelis,
where (illespie defeated them
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(Vide Grrerser).  Thofinal c:upi |
O

itulation of the island was signe

on the 18th September, and Minto,
inone of his Despatches to the
authorities in England, said, ¢ An
empire which for two centuries
has contributed greatly to the
power, prosperity, and grandeur
of one of the principal and most
respected states in Hurope has
been thus wrested from the short

nsurpation of the French Govern- |

ment, has been added to the
dominionof the British Crown, and
converted, from a seat of hostile

machination and commercial com- |
entation of |

Eetitiou, into an au
ritish power and prosperity.”
Raffles was appointed Lieutenant-
Governor of Java and its depen-
dencies, “ as an acknowledgment
of the gervices he had rendered,
and in consideration of his pecu-
liar fitness for the office.”
Another most important mili-
tary event during the administra-
tion of Minto was fhe capture of
the Manritius and Bourbon, Nov-
ember 1810, At the peace of Parig,
1814, 'Bourbon was restored to
the HFrench. .
' Maeao, a small Portuguese sei-
tloment, it was feared would be
oceupied by the French, when
Bonaparte in 1808, seemed on the
point of subduing Spain and Por-
tugal 5 80 a small armament was
sent to the Canton river. The
Chinese  always looked wupon
Macao as belonging to their own
empire, and c¢onsidered the Por-
tuguese as mere tenants at will,
The landing of the British troops
led to o guarrel with the Chinese,
which by the unaccountable con-
ditet of Admiral Drury, led to the
humiliating convention of Macao
in December 1808 in conformitr
with which he sailed away with
‘his troops to Bengal.

!

Minto intimated to the Direc-
torg his wish to regign early in
1814, but the Prince Regent,
anxious to bestow the appointment
on the Earl of Moira, the favourite
of the day, induced the Board
of Control to recall Minto. Buf
circumstances prevented Lord
Moira coming out to India earlier

than within a few months of the®

peviod Minto himself had fixed
for his departure. In the mean-
time Minto was raised fto the
peerage, nnd towards the close of
the year 1813, took his passage to
England, , -

MIRZAFFIR JUNG, vide Ni-
ZAM, :

MOBARIK KHILIT, vide
J1.

MOIZZ-U-DIN BEHRAM, vide
Srave Kinos or DELHL

MOLESWORTH, J. T., was
the author (with the assistance
in the first edition of ‘Thomas
and George Candy) of the Ma-
rathi and English Dictionary
so greatly appreciated in ¥ndia,
that by competent judges it is
held to be by far the best lexico-
graphical work which hbas yeb
been produced in this country.
Molesworth came to India as a
military eadet when only about
sixteen years of age. For some
time he was in the Commissariat
Department of the gervice ; but,
during the administration of Mr.
Elphinstone he was set apart
for the preparation of the great
work above named, for the
execution of which he was ad-
mirably qualified by ' his ea.rlj;;
classical trainini, fmc{ by his hig

attainments in Marathi and Hin-
dustani, and his respectable pro-

39

K- -



o r.“» 08
AT

. MON-MOO

ficiency in Sanserit and Persian,
The great work which he under-
took was with his and hisacecom-
plished helpers,.a_labour of love,
prosecuted with entire devotion,
a3 he tells'ug, to the highest in-
terests of Indiat 'To the revision
amplification, and publication of
_ 1mﬁ§econd edition he 'glev_ut:ﬁ six

entire years, spent principally ay
Poona and M'ﬂ.ﬁ;bleshwul{) This

~ admirable volume was printed un-

der the superintendence ‘of . Mr,
. Firth, and was published in 1857.
. On its appearance it was reviewed
in an article in the Bombuy Quor-

| derly Review, which has besu

more than onee re-printed. Moles-
. warth, after his return to England,
desired to drop his title of Major,
“which had nothing to do with hig
1 distinetive work in the world, and
* " he never took up the designation
of Honourable to -which he was
centitled as the brother of Viscount
 Molesworth. Tis Marathi Dic-
tionary was really a great worlk,
judged even by cosmopolitan
standards, and he is well deserv-
ing of a place among the departed
worthies of the Bombay Presiden-
ey. He died at Clifton, August
1872, aged 77.

MONTGOMERIE, Sir PATRIOK,

KIG.B, Colonel Commandant of
“ the Royal Madras Artillery, was
“born in 1793 and entered the
gervice in 1810, He was educat-
ed in the Royal Military College

+ at Woolwich and rose to be second.

in the list of officers of the Artil-

7 lery. General Patrick Montgome

was employed in the Mahrattah
campaigns under General Dove-
ton 1 1814, 156 and 16, and with
" ‘the 8rd division of the Army of
the Deccan in the Mahrattah war
in 1817 and 1818, was present at
gn affair with the Pindarees in

"March 18d2.

1816, at the battle of Nagpore,
16th December 1817 siege  of
Nagpore 1817—siege and storm
of Chandah, May 1818-—was with
the expedition to Ava in 1824, 25
and 26, present at the capture of
Rangoon, 11th May 1824, Attack
on stockades, 28th May 16824, and

3rd June 1824, repulse of an at-

tack on the lines of Rangoon, 1st
July 1824, defence of Dagon Pa-
goda, December 1824, Command-
ed the Artillery with Major Sale's
column of attack, 5th December
1824, Commanded the Artillery |
with  the force ‘which stormed
entrenched position at Kolayne,
16th Dece
nabew, March ‘1825—attack on |
the enemy’s. entrenched position
at Prome on the 1st, 2nd and 5t
Decernber 18256—attack and storm '
of Meloun, 18th January 1826, |
affair at Paghan Mew, 9th Febyn-!
ary 1826--was employed with the
expedition o China in 1e40; 411
and 42-—present at the capture of
Chusan, bth July 1840-~night at-
tack upon. Ningpo, 20th . March
1842—attack upon the engty's
entrenched position on the heightis |
of Segona I

Maxch 1842~capture of Chapoo, |
18th May 1842-<capture of Woo-
sun% 16th  June 1842—capture
of Shanghee, 16th WJxne | 15432,
assanlb Chingkeang-lop, Z1st July
1842 —operations = before = Nan-
kin, August 1842 wounded  in
the scortie  from Ninggo by a
matchlock  ball on ' the ' (T0th

. He -ywag oreaped
a KiC B, in  1865: for Dﬂv{i;
distinguished serviess in  the
East” He died in the latter end
of 1872. ., ° A R
MOOR, Major Epwarp, B.IL.(.S.
F.R.8.; the well-known author of
the Hindoo Pantheon—came out

er 1824, siege'of Do-

'sekee, on the 186th
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* to Indiain the army, early in life;
e was with the British-contin-
gent nuder Captain Little, which
acted with the Mahrattahs against
Tippoo in 1790-91, and he was
afterwards at Poona, Hyderabad
and Bdinbay, where he lived ap-
- parentlyontermsof greatintimacy.
with the various Native Chiefs of
‘Western Indig, . He is supposed to
have returned to England shortly
betore the publication of his Hin-
(doo | Panbdheon, which appeared
ghout 1810, The book having be-
‘eome exceedingly scarce, a new
edition appeared in' Madrag in
1864, with additional plates, con-
. densed and annotated, In 1861,
the plates alone, illustrating the
orincipal deities with their Sactis
nearnations, &ec., were re-printe
in London. Moor was also the
author of ! Suffolk Words and.
Phrages,’ published it 1823, The
first book he ever bought with his
own money was an imperfect copy
of Theobald’s edition of Shakes-
pear at Madras in 1783, which he
made very good use of, for many
illustrations of the gréat dramatic
poet are to be found in his collee-
tion of * Buffolkisms.” Heusually
resided at Great Bealings, Suffolk;
where for many years he wasa
very active Magistrate, and uni-
versally respected.  He died aged
sevenfy-seven, on the 26th Feby.
1848, in (leorge Street, West-
wminster,

MOORCROFT, WrioLiam, an
English traveller, was born in
Lancashire, and was educated as
a Surgeon at Liverpool. He en-
tered | the service of the E. I
Company in 1808, and went to
Bengal as Inspector of the Mi-
litary ghuds, Very soon after he
was sent on a difficult journecy
beyond the Himalayas, In 1519,

he_'set. ont on another venbure- =
some iogrney_ through the Pun~
Jjaub, Thibet, Cashmere, to Can-

dahar and Bokhara, and after i

braving the greatest perils in
these wild and inhospﬂable re~

gions, he fell ill with fever and ' |
died ata small town near Bokhara

in 1825, Burnes, on_his memo-
rable journey from Lahore to Bok-,

‘hara, 1831-33, visited his tomb ;

and a narrative of his expedition
was edited from his papers by
Wilson in 1841, ;

MUHA BUNDOOLA,aBurmese
(eneral who led the troops
against the English during the
first Burmese war. He was ﬁi]led
at Prome on the 1st of April
1825, by the bursting of a shell.
His death heralded negotiations
of peace—but not being able 1o
come fo terms the Burmese made
one more desperate attempt to
expel the English from Prome,
which failed, in December 1825,
Another onsianght with that in-
domitable perseverance tlie' Bup~
anese had maintained throughout
the whole war, was made in Fe-
bruary 1826, in which the Bur-
mese were totally routed. . The
treaty of Yandaboo was signed on
the 24th of February 1826, and
the Furopean Missionaries who
had suffeved a cruel captivity for
two years were released, (Vide
JUDSON.)

MULHAR ROW HOLKAR,
vide HolgAR FAMILY.

MUNRO, Sir Taomas, was born
at Gilasgow on the 27th of May
1761. His father was a respect-
able merchant, trading chiefl

with America, and it was his wis

that his son’ should follow his
own commercial career ; but the
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American war by reducing him to
baukruptey crushed these hopes,
and young Munrowasdestined toa
totully different one. Though pas-

sionately fond of all kinds of

manly sports, Munro s a boy was
quite as ardently attached to
reading, Having been told that
the reading of Don Quixote conld
not be sufficiently relished with-
out a knowledge of Spanish he
applied himself most assiduously
o acquire that language. He
succeeded, and it brought to him
very soon a proof of the value of
mental labour. A Spanish prize,
captured by one of the privateers
fitted out by a mercantile house
in  Glaseow, among numerous
others, arrived in the “ Olyde.” No
member of the firm could read or
understand the papers she con-
tained, and Munro’s gervices were
in immediate requisition. He
translated the papers faithfully,
and received as a reward a Ban

Post Bill, which he presented to
his mother, Before the crisisin
his father's affaivs happened, he
was offered a Lieutenant’s com-
mission by the Corporation of
Glasgow, and to his bitter disap-
pointment, wad instructed to de-
cline it ; but after the ruin of his
father’s commercial prospects, ne-
cessity led him into a course of
life suited to the bent of his in-
clinations, His father obtained
for him a midghipman’s berth in
the Mercantile Marine of the E. L
Comfnamy, and he set out to join
hix ship, the * Walpole,” at Dept-
ford, on the 20th of February
1779, but his father having reach-
ed London before the ship sailed,
managed to get the midshipman’s
rating changed for a cadet’s war-
rant. No money, however, was
fortheoming to meet the expenses,
80 young Munro offered to work

his passage out, as a man before
the mast, and arrived at Madras
on the 17th of January 1780. He
came out with several letters of
recommendation to various per-
sons in Madras, at which saca
hig. published  correspondence
gives an account of the circum-
stances attending his outward
voyage and first year’s work in
India. He here formed a friend~
ship with Dr. Koenig. His pay
was five pagodas a month, an
allowance which in these days
makesone wonderhow he managed
to subsist at all. He gives' a
humorous account in his early
letters of how on his first landing
at Madras, a venerable old native
well backed with  characters en-
tered his service, and how he did-
dled him out of all the clothes he
had brought from England, as
well as six guineas, which he had
obtained on the pretext of pur-
chasing such as suitable for India ;
and concludes, saying, with :
my ‘economy, it was near gix
months before I could save money
enough to buy me a few suits of
linen.” It may not be uninterest-
ing here fo quote the following
fromone of Munro’sletters, toshow
what an Englishman’s life in In-
dia was, in those days:

“ You may not believe me when
I tell you, that I never experi-
encod hunger or thirst, fatigue or
poverty, till I came to India—that
since then, T have frequently meb
with the first three, and that the
last has been my* constant com-

anion. If you wish for proofs,

ere they are : I was three years
in Indis before 1 was master of
any other pillow than a book or a
cartridge poueh ; my bed was a
piece of canvas, strotchedsn four
cross sticks, whose ouly ornament -
was the great coat 1 broughtfrom
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and, which, by a lucky inven-

tion,
the cold ‘weather, by thrusting my
legs iuto the sleeves, and drawing

the skirts over my head. In this

situation I lay like Falstaff in the
bagket--~hilt to point—and very
comfortable, I assure you, all but
my feet'; for the tailor, not hav-
ing foreseen. the wvarious uses to
which this piece of dress might be
applied, had cut the cloth so short,
that I never could, . with all my
jngenuity, bringbothunder cover ;
whatever I gained by drawing up
my legs, 1 lost by exposing my
neck ; and I generally choss ra-
ther to cool my heels, than m]y
head. This had served me till
Alexander (a brother) went: last
year to Bengal, when he gave mie
an Europe camp couch, On this
great oceasion, I hought a pillow
and a carpet to lay under me, but
the wunfortunate curtains ‘were
condemned to make pillow-cases
and towels ; and now for the first
time in Inciia, T laid my head on
a pillow. But this was too much

good fortune to bear with moder- |

ation ; I began to grow proud,
and resolved to live in great style ;
for this purpose L bought two
. table-spoons, and another chair—
for I had but one before—a table,
and two table cloths. But my
prosperity was of short duration,
for, i less than three months, )
lost three of my spoons, and one
of my chairs was broken by one
of John Napier's companious.
This great blow reduced me to m
original obseurity, from which all
attempts to emerge have hitherto
proved in vain,”

“My dress has not been more
splendid than my furniture. I
have never been able to keep it
all of a ptece ; it

I turned ito a . blanket in

lishing funds to vepair ‘it in

‘waistcoat, il [
*My  travelling  axpeditions

much grandeur or ease. My only
[conveyance is an old horse, whe

if he were to die, I would give
my kingdom for another, and find
nobody to accept of my offer, Till

walkiug was, T have often walked

any other refreshment than a
dvink of water ; and T have tra-
versed on foot, in different direc-
tions, almost every part of the
country between Vizagapatam and
Madura, a distance of 6§00 miles.”

Munro commenced his carcer as
a sollier when Hyder bad com-
menced his second war in con-
Junction with the French against
the Euglish, He took a personal
part, though only a subordinate
actor in the events, throughout
the cmnpniﬁn. . :

His conduet was such that he
was appointed Quarter-Master of
Brigade to the left division of the
army in November 1781, and in
this capacity he acted as aide-de-
camp to the officer in command

| of the second attack of Cuddalore

on the 13th June 1783.

On the cessation of hostilities
with France in July 1783, the
army before Cuddalore broke up,
and Munro joined his regiment.
the 21st battalion, at Madras, an
in January 1785, he passed into
the 3rd battalion at Tanjore. In
the following year he was pro-

rows tattered | moted to a lientenant and was at-

in one quarter, while I am estab- | tached for a short time to the

|18 now so weak, that in all my

I came here I hardly kuew what

from sunrise to sunset, without

another ; and my coat is in.dan-
ger of losing its sleeves, while I
am pulliu% it off to try on a new

have never been performed with |

Jjourneys, I am always obliged to
walk two-thirds of the way : and
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self, From: the day of Munro’s
arrival at Madras, he devoted him~
self to the study of the Vernact-
lars, and with a view of extend-
ing his. exertions, he solicited a
removal into the 11th battalion of
Native Infantr{} then at Cassim-

izagapatam, In
January 1787, he was again trans-
ferred to his old corps, the 21st,

at Vellore. In the following year

" his acgnirements were recognised

by the higher powers, and he was

" placed on the general staff of the

. awas particularl

wrmy; /

“Duing the second war with
Tippoo in 1790, Munro acted with
the force under Clolonel Read, and
noticed by Loxd
Cornwallis, who conducted the
war in person. Hewas afterwards
nominated as Assistant to Colonel
Read in settling the conquered
territories, and on the fall of Se-
ringapatam in 1799, Munro was
appointed one of the Commis-
sioners for the adjustment of the
affairs of the Mysore kingdom,
and for investing the young ?fﬁt:mj ah
of the old dynasty. Munro was
decidedly opposed to this mea-

.gure, of which he writes, “ Had I

had anything to doinit, I cer-
tainly would have hadno Rajah
of Mysore, in the person of a child

_dragged forth from oblivion, to

be placed on a throne on which
his ancestors, for three generations
had not sat during more than he if
a century. 1 would have divided
the country equally with the Ni-
sam, and endeavoured to prevail
on him to inerease his subsidy and
take a groater body of our troops ;
but whether he consented or naof,
T would gtill have thought myselt
hound by treaty to give him his
fair half of the country, I wonld
have given the Mahrattahs a few

uropean Regiment in Madras it-

districts, proirirléd-'t.hw consented

to fulfil their last treaty with him ;

but not otherwise.” . :
* Soon after, Munro was deputed
to administer the province of
‘anara, and in 1800, was chosen by
the second Lord Clive, then Go- |
vernor of Madras to fill the im-'
portant post of Collector in the
territories ceded by the Nizam,
These provinces were then ina
state of complete anarchy and
disorganization, and in a very few
years he restored them to perfect
ordey, in fact, order and tranquil-
lity were for the first time intros
duced there. A proof of the able
manner in which he governed, is,
that while the revenues under the
Nizam amounted to twelve lacs of
pagodas (:£490,000), they amourtt-
ed to vighteen lacs under his man-
agement, and these results were
not obtained by any arbitravy or
despotic rule, bat bﬂ equitable,
judicions and conciliatory. meas
sures. So much so that his me-
morywas cherished by the natives,
and he was known throughont the
country by the appellation of the
« Pather of the People) Wilks
verifies this, as will be seen by the
following extract from his History
of Sonthern India:
“Iwill not deny myself the
}:»'leasure of stating an incident re-
ated to me by a respectable native
servant of the Government of My-
sore; who was senb in 1807 to as-
sist in the adjustment of a disput-
ed boundary between that terri-
tory and the district in charge of
this Collector. A viclent dispute
ocourred in his presence between
some villagers, and the party ag-
grieved threatened to go to' Anan-
tapore and complain to their
Father. Heperceived that Colonel
Munro was meant, and  found
upon enquiry that he was gene-
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g 'ﬁﬂv/hstmgnzshed throug
- district by that appellatitn.”’
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Munro was pramoted to the | :

1804
of Lieutenant-Colonel and'

rank

in 1808 he left India on furlou

for, Enghmd having been inthe
conntry now twenty cighty years.
As the  period drew near fm:

enguiries were introduced ;.infor- £
mation on Indian affairg was.te-

: %tured from competent men, snd

unro’s presence in Engl
the time was most op nc-
During his long stay 1n 1a he

- had amassed an immensé amoﬁnt
of knowlr‘dgc not only of the na-

tives and the coulrbry but o'f,evﬁgy
0
in 1813, he was examinee” before
a Parlmmeuhry Clomiittee : the
examination lasted sévernl days,
and his evidence constitutes a
valuable legacy to the cetntry.
He made the following remafks
on the close of the examination :
T am afraid 1 have not been ble
to give full answers 0" the ques-
tions put to me on such a varie
of subjects. T have felé myseff
mcompetent to fi]we the answers
L would wish te"have done-to all
kinds pf” points, embracing the
gulet‘ln}uts of the European fra-
ors, the civil wars of the Bengal
Jnd 20. planters, the oppreéssions |
E. 1. 'Company,, and in
short. to questions comprt.hend~

« o ing almost every subject from th

’

- undeniable,

_oarde blanket .of the Ihn.doo to

tha feudal systen.”’

The celebrated Fifth Rpport on |

the, saffairs of the E. I Com-
pam ‘came ont in” the same year

Munro- was examined, and it |
bec&mc’ necessary  to dévise, mea-
siires for the correction of o sys-
tem, the inefficiency of which was.

The.Court of DIIEL-

ummh‘ed o Cnmtmsmmt thh
Mu at the head: cix ity in’ con.
tion of the Gh esteem dft. *
.wluch bis' knfowledge and Ju.dg
ment of In;ka.u*"hﬁ‘mrs avag hel
(0 Uommmﬁmn Wiksy to‘euqume“
111t0 t}re res! mérits of the case
and:” re-miodel the revenue ant’l

-1 Judicial - depavtments under the

Rtesmlency of FortSt, Gearge.* In» -
laveh 1874, Murro matried Misgs
Jahe I’;ampbell »of Urdigle, in Ayr-
shire ; onthe 12thJune ‘enibatked
“with ..hr'r ' §t Portsmouth ~andl
‘arrived at* Madrgs on the 161:11.—‘_’
LB¢ptember, The resiltof Munrd’s: :
nieasuresas o Uomanissionarformar » 7
one of the most remarkable events'
of his political:life-~it led to the
adoption 6T thel myotwa_;ry} vevenud’,
Syatem in. the greatet pnmon .@f’
" thé "I‘Ldlas’ternbdrles, and it iga’
fact that Madr{m ngver pmddce@
a surplus revetine tifl s time,

~ In 1818, Munro swas appointed:
o the sumrmtend&nen of the *
Dovab on .the “eefsidn  of “Ahe
Southern Mahrattah- countty by
{-the late Péishwa. -Whew'fhe Pin~" . '
dartyandMahrattahwar(1817-18)
Fbroke ouby Munro resuméd- his
mzhtay functions] which had
merged into fhose “of a . civil
nature for nearly . twenty years,
With vm{l imperfect. means he -

| accomplished “greaf resmlts. ° Mr.

| Canning. in  moving” a- vote of
th,anka'm *the House of Uomumons,

Match 4th, 1819, -to. Lord . Has."
fings and the army in Indis for
their services in this war, said of .
Munro :

“ Af the southern extremlt}r of -
 this long line of operations, was -
‘employed & man .who, F should
indeed have been -sorry to-have
passgd over in silence. I allude
to Colonel Thomas Munro, a gen-
tlemun, whose rare _ qualifications
the late House of Clommons 'harl
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e
J'-' :
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_opportunities  of judging when
he was examined at their bar
on the renewal of the B, I. Com-
any’s Charter ; *and than whom
Burope never produced a more
aeccomplished statesman, nor Ln-
dia, fertile as it is in heroes, a
move skilful soldier. This gentle-
man, whose oceupations for some
time past, have been rather of a
civil and administrative than a
military nature, was called early
in the war, to exercise abilities,
which though dormaut had not
. yusted from disuse. He went into
the field with not miore than 5 or
600 men, of whom a very small
proportion were Europeans ; and
muarched into the Muahrattah ter-
ritories to take possession of the
country which had been ceded to
us by the treaty of Poona.”

“The population he subdued
by arms, he managed with such
address, equity and wisdom, that
hie established an empire over
their hearts and feelings. Nine
forts were surrendered to him, or
taken by assault, on his way ; and
at the end of a silent and scarcely
obsetved progress, he emerged
from a territory, hitherto hostile
to the British interests, with an
accession, instead of a diminu-
tion, of force, leaving everything

. gacnre and tranquil behind  hin.
This result speaks more than
could be told by any minute and
extended commentary.”

The war being over, Munro,
svhose health had suffered severe-
1y from fatigue; hastened to Ban-
galore where Mrs. Munro’s was
residing, and proceeding to Mad-
ras. with her, applied for leave
toresign, They embarked from
Madrasinthe * Warren Hastings,”
on the 24th of January 1819, fully
determined never to return to
India again. They had scarcely

arrived. when news was received

that Munro was again wanted to
fill a high station in India. The
rank of Muajor-Cleneral was con-
ferred upon him, he was invested
with the ingignia of K.C,B,, and
a}Lpointcd Governor ‘of Madras,
The post was unsolicited, He
took the oaths at the India House
on the 8th of December 1819, and
Madrag welcomed Munro haclk
agiin, accompanied by Lady
Munro, on the 9th June 1820, A
gon was born to them on their
voyage home, but was left behind

Innder the care of Lady Munto’s

fa.th.er.
Sir Thomas Munro’s Governs

ment was distinguished for its

mildness, and the admirable sys-
tem with which all its’ details
were managed. The revenues con-
tinued to improve, tranguillity
reigned throughout the fadras
Presidency, and it supplied 20,000
men for the Burmese war,

In SBeptember 1823, Munro ex-
Erc&s@d a wish to resign his office,

ut.in consequence of the Bur-.
mese war, he intimated to the
Board of Control and the Court
of Directors, his desire to hold
his post till the arrival of his
successor. The Court gladly avail-
ed itself of the extension of bis
services,

While on one of his journeys to
the Ceded Districts, the early
gcene of his astonishing success,
he was suddenly seized by that
scourge of India, the cholera.
I.]'Hon.ammng at Puttaconda, o
village twenty miles north of
Gooty, where the cholera was
raging, he was taken ill at breal-
fast, and left the table; and
though he appeared to rally a
little at intervals during the day,
the disease inecreased rapidly
towards evening, and he breathed
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THis Indb- at 9:30 p. ot 6th July
<1827 only twelve hours after

- +heing .attacked. Even indeath,,

- it is dstonishing the congideration,

el
s ln.g's'j.""

IC e T S

. ‘he showed fowards others, He

- repeatedlyrequested various nient-
“bers of his staff #6 quit him, Say-
It is not fair b kéep ﬁm

in ane infected chamber.” His
Body was moved to Gootd, within
,an hour’and 4 Half of Mg death,
and intefred the same evering in
%ravey@ﬁfof,thn.t station ” A
gentleman “present desctibed the
seené shps:  “Theré wag some-

” _. - thing solemut and touching in the

L« -funeral

i=the.  situation »'of* the

s ch{prchjj';a.lﬁ, the melanchioly sound
oLt

-

tie 'lipinutéf%\mfa ifeverberating

among the hilly 2 the grand an

- frowning’ appearanie of. the' for-

“ tress towerrne Tabove the Gom—
all tendédto make - the awful
corenrony more irppressive.” ,

The ship in_twhidh he intended

L embarldug te Fngland in Angust
iwas Iying- i thggMadras il
“Lady Munro had quitfed Indigin -

Roads,

March 1826, | Intelligence of Iis

death cansed a profound sensation
both'in England and India’ -«

In personal appearance Munro

was #triking—he was very 'tall,

. upwards of six feet, and his frame

_Binewy,. He was rather reserved

in soviety, but this arose from a

alight ' deafness to which he had
been subject from boyhood. - He
was brought up in the communion

- .+ ‘ol the Church of Bcotland, and led

asincere Uhristian life.

s~ Thepeopleof the Ceded Districts

erected a Chutrim (a vestinghouse
for poor travellers) by ‘public sub-

- " seription among thémselves, and

called it after “his name. A sub-
seription was also-raised in India
« and England to, the amount’ of
£8,000;for the purpose of erecting

an . equestrian statue of Munro on-

-+_-
=

“the ﬁar’ade-'grdn'ﬁd of M?tdma. The
work was executed hy Chantrey.

‘survived the greater muraber of

those who contributed to its exigf«

s

# The living bionzé hay already

ence, but it still speaks, and will -~ |

 generations of the past; telling

ow talent,-industry, honour and
“devation tor i
men  from t}ﬁe humblest to

of mankind.” '
A fall length oil
Muuro-hangs in the

1831, his remains were removed
and interred in &b,
adras. 5

'MUNSTER, -
son of ‘the Duke of

celebrated Mrs.
born on the 29th of January 1794,

the elements of insiiction at
Supbury, under, -Dr. Moore, and-
was- then removed to the Royal
Military College at Marlow. He

and sas severely wounded a

-against cavalry.

clarence gailed for
de-camp to Lord Hastings, and
Oriental languages and literature.
During  the Mahrattah .- war of
1817-18, he had many opportuwi-
ties of distinguishing himself, and.-
-on the conelusion of peace with
- Sindia, he was ' intrusted, with
carg;ing home the overlandDes-
atches from Indin. In 1819,
e published his “ Route .across
India through Egypt to England
i 40

| long continne to speak, to comitg

Mary’s Chureh, il

?EORGE Firzora-
ruNCE, Earl of, was thé eldest . .
i of, Olatence %«
(afterwards William 1V) and the "~
ordan. ' He was -

Tl tivelve years old be”peceived

Toulousey in heading a charge’,

while there closely. studréd: the

mtqywtﬂin‘q i
Falk, Madras. On the 21st Apml "~

ot

ublic: serviee, carry <
.?Ie _*-.-."-_ S :

highest situations, snd ensurefor

their mémories the lnsting respect |

a

oaiiting of .7

P

o

&
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-

went thréngh the Peninsular V\-ay‘,
¢

»

In January 1815 Cn.pt-’aianit;:- o
Tudin‘as Aide-
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naps and coloured  platey, ‘‘a
livea; and interesting narrative.”
By the influence of his friend the
Duke of Wellington, he received
the Brevet of Lieutenant-Colonel,
and  soon after married  Miss
‘Mary Wyndham, a natural daugh-
ter of the Harl of Hgremont, by

~whom he had seven children,

His royal father had searcely been
on the throne a year wlhen he
ereated his eldest son, Earl of
Munster, Viscount Fitzelirence

in the years 1817-18, with 19

‘and Baron Tewkesbury, Dodd,

in _his Aunual Obituary, says
“No person who has observed
the carveer of Lord Munster, can
overlook the fact, that he fely
himself continually urged, by his
peculiar position, to both mental
and physical exertions, which
were perhaps beyond his strength,
Theill-gonsequences of every tem-
porary indisposition were aggra-
vated by his sensibility,” and on
the evening of the 20th March
1842, he shot himself,

N

- NADIR SHAH was born on the
11th November 1688 in the pro-
vinca of Khorassan. His original
name was Nadir Kouli. He was
of low origin being the son of a
cowherd, %

lected a band of freebooters, and
began life as a brigand. His force
soon became a very formidable
one, with which he freed Kho-
vassan in 1727 from the Abdalee
! Afghang who had overrun it
Nadir dethroned the reigning king
and raised Tamash to tie throne,
but ' ouly nominally, The sole
power was in his hands, for after
driving outthe Afghans, the Turks
~and the Russians, he ascended the
throne himself, apparently with
much reluctance. "T'he scene is
described as baving taken place
on a vast plain where upwards of
100,000 persons requested Nadir
Shah to 59 #0. He, however, made
it conditional that the established
religion should be changed, which
destroyed the power and influence
of the Sheah seet who had sup-
ported the dynasty he had over-

ut possessing a very |
bold and intrepid spirit, he col- |

-

thrown, Nadir himself appears
to have possessed no religion, and
the Koran and the Gospel were
subjects of great ridiculé to him,
In 1737, he Invaded Afghanistan,
and while thus engaged, he sent a
messgenger to Delhi asking for the
surrender of some of his fugitive
Afghan subjects.  The Court be=
ing distracted at this time with
internal dissensions, neglected the
request, when a second messenger
was sent, who wag assassinated at
Jellalabad, Nadirthereuponeross-
ed the Indus ona bridge of boats,
with 65,000 troops, invaded the
Punjaub—and continued to pro-
ceed againgt Delhi. The Emperox
Mahommed Bhah, advanced to
meet him, but received a signal
defeat at Ku rnaul, and threw him-
self on the merey of the conqueror,
Ttwagstipulated that Nadirshould
retire on the payment of 2 crores
of Rupees, but Saadut Khan, the

| Boobadar of Qudh, owing the Em-

peror & grudge, set Nadir up to
demand more; as his province
alone could pay that amount.
Nadir upon hearing this, decided



", dead, the inhabitants fell upon the

upon levying the' exactions under
his own eye, and entered Delhi in
March 1738 with the Emperor,
and took possession of his palace,
. In. consequence of a report the
~ following day that Nadir was

. Persian soldiegy and massacred
about a thoystind of them.  Nadir
An trying to quell the tamals, was
asaaﬁe& with missiles from win-
dows, one of which caused the
. death of a favorite officer by his
- Bide, Aggravated by this he was
- unable te restrain himself, and
ordered & general. massacre of

the- inhabitants., Thousands fell
under the swords of the infurinted
soldiery, but such was the discis
&].ine.of his anmy that the instant
adir ovdered 1t to desist, every
sword was sheathed. Delhi was
‘next given up to %Iunder for fifty-
eight days. - All the trensures and
jewels of the Emperor and his
nobles were taken wway, ever
house was searched and sacked,
“Baadut Kbhan on being demanded
what he said his.province alone
- eould furnish, poisoned himself-—
and Nadir re-seating Mahommed
Shal upon his throne, atd caution-
ing the surronnding princes and
nobles notto rebel against the Em-
peror, took his departure with 32
crores of Rupees || ! at the same
time having annexed all the coun-
fries west of the Indus to thecrown
of Pergia. On his veturn to Persia

in 1740, he punished the Sove-
reign of Bokhara, who had made
an wmewsion into Khorassan. duor-
ing -his| absence,  The 'king of
Khaurizm refusing to submat to
Nadir was taken prisonerin battle |
and put to death.  The peace of |
Persia. was entirely secured by
these conquests. T'he latter end
of Nadir's reign was characterized

by great cruelty, tyranny and sus- |

picions of his owh subjects. ---.-’1’_1.13;-"; i

change of religion above reforn
to made hiin very unpopular, and
he at length ceased to trust any

of the Persians in his service be-
longing to the

put to death every Persian in Kis
army. Some of his (ienerals hear
ing of this and anticipating pro-
seription formed a conspiracy and
assassinated him in his tent on

the night of the 20th-June 1747,
His life was written by his own 1
Becretary in Persian, and. was.:

translated into French by Sir W.
Jones. ' Malcolm, in the second.
volume of his Histor
also: gives a detaile
Nadir's life, . .

NANA SAHIB, the fiend of the -
Tudian Mutiny of [1857-58, was

the son of a Brahmin from the ,
Deccan, born about 1820, and

his real ngme was Dhundu Punt.
He was adopted asa son by the
childless and pensioned Peishwa
of Poona, Bajee Rao, in 1827, and
educated as a Hindn npbleman-—
was  taught English, and’ asso-
ciated much with- Eiropeans, in
whose alausements and sports e
was. particularly. fond of- indulg-
g, It was necessary for the

bond-fide termination of the Mah-

rattah war of 1818, that Bajea

a0 should  surrender, and Sir

John Malcolin twas deputed to
treat with him. =By skiliul nego-
tiation and his own pgrsonal in-
fluence, he induced Bajee Rao 1o
do so, to give up all his preten-
sions, and become a pensioner of

the British Giovernment. It was =

stipulated that eight lacs of rupees
(£80,000) a year should be his
life-pension.. Lord Hastings cou-
gsidered the grant far too iberal,
as Bajee Rao had violated the

w

R

Sheah seet—in fact
it is paid he formed a designte

of Persia, |
account of



 mion should be discontinu
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treaty of Bassein,
Bajee Rao’s death in 1853, Lovd
Dalhousie directed that the pen-
, a8
the claimant, Nana Sahib, was
only an adopted sen. The Nana
then sent an envoy to London to
appeal to the Court of Directors,
but he was unsuccessful. He
was, however, allowed to retain
gome of the State of a native
prince—n retinue of 200 soldiers,
three field pieces and the jageer
Tﬁd fortified residence of Blthom&
The imaginary injury he suffere
under, rankled in his breast, and
he gratified his long-wished-for
revenge, when the Mutiny of 1857
broke out, Offering his aid to
the English, he treacherously
placed himgelf at the head of the
mutineers, and perpetrated un-
. paralleled deeds of atrocity. The
tragedy of Cawnpore—the wa{lin
sehich some hundreds of English
men, helpless women and inno-
cent children, exposed to a broil-
ing sun, were obliged to seek pro-
tection behind intrenchments and
guns from the fury of the inha-
bitants of a country, ruled by
England—the way at length in
which they were after intense
sufferings induced to believe by
the Nana that they would he
safely sent down the Ganges in
boats to Calentta,—the way in
which they were mercilessly fived
upon, when they boarded these
boats—the way in which the wo-
men were spared only to meet
with dishonour and a worse death,
is well-known and told in fright-
ful detail in various works of the
period. (Vide Nemr.) After a
series of engagements, in which
Nana Sahib wag' continunally the
loser, he was driven beyond the
Hnplish frontier into Nepaul, A
large reward was offered by Grov-

1802, and on | ernment for his capture, but with

no result. ' Vague rumours of his
death have floated about from
time to time, but it is still un-
certain whether the monster is
dead or alive.

NAPIER, Bir Craruis JAMES
G.C.B., the eldest son of Colonel
the Hon'ble (. Napier, Comptrol-
ler of Accounts in Ireland, was
born at Whitehall ‘on the 10th of
August 1782. He obtained his
first commission as Easign in the
22nd Foot, when twelve years old,
and firstsaw active service during
the Trish rebellion, 1798, and again
| in the insurrection of 1803, Hawv-
ing obtained his company in 1806,
he joined the British forces in
Spain, and commanded the 50th
Regiment of Foot, during the ter-
rible ‘retreat on Corunna under
Sir John Moore, on which ocea-
| sion he received five wounds and
was taken prisoner, He 'was
allowed to return to England on
parole, where he found his friends
in mourning for him and admin-
istering his effects | He again
joined the British army in the
Peninsula in 1809, as a volunteer,
and had two horses shot under
him at Cao, and wasg severel
wounded at Busaco : he also too

art in the battle of Fuentes de

noro, and in the second siege of
Badajoz as well as in a number of
smaller skirmishes. In 1813, he
joined the floating expedition on
the Coast of the United States.
He returned to Europe too late to
witness the battle of Waterloo,
but took part in the storming of
Cambray and accompanied the
British army to Paris.

Soon after this he was appoint-
ed Governor of Cephalonia, and
joined Lord Byron in a scheme
for the deliverance of Greece. He




